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WITH A STEP FIRMLY ROOTED IN 
MANUFACTURING AND SERVICE, 
KAMDHENU LIMITED 
STRIVES TO EXCEL EACH DAY BY 
KEEPING THE FOCUS ON MARKETING 
AND BRANDING.
THIS HAS BORNE FRUITS, AS THE DEALER AND FRANCHISEE NETWORK GREW 
MULTIFOLD OVER THE YEARS. THIS INTENT IS A PART OF THE LEGACY AND 
WE WISH TO BUILD A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE ON IT. THAT IS WHY WE CHOSE 
TO EXPAND THE CAPACITY OF OUR STEEL PRODUCTION AND STRATEGICALLY 
REALIGNED OUR DECORATIVE PAINTING BUSINESS TO STAY AHEAD AND BE 
READY FOR THE FUTURE.

` 

Crore

TOTAL REVENUE

%

ROCE

BPS

` 

Crore

EBITDA

` 

Crore

PAT

%

ROE

BPS

ROCE: Return on capital employed 
ROE: Return on equity

EBITDA: Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and ammoritzation
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So how are we getting

READY?
Factors for the

` 

Crore

STEEL REVENUES 

` 

Crore

PAINT REVENUE 
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OUR VALUE-
CREATION 
ENDEAVOURS

Financial capital

Intellectual capital

Human capital

Relationship capital

Social capital

Manufacturing capital

 
 

 

This capital refers to 

 

 Franchises
 Dealers/Distributors

 

 

per annum
 

annum
 

per annum

  

 

 

OUR VALUE CREATION BUSINESS MODEL
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Strategies

ASSET-LIGHT 

OUR PROGRESS REPORT OF 
OUR COMMITMENTS

 

 

 

 
 

 33 

  

 

OUTPUT CAPITAL
 

 
 

EPS

  

OUTCOME

environment

`

 Franchise Units to manufacture steel

capital
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CREATING VALUES TO BE

ONE 
STEP AT 
A TIME.

Incorporation of 
Kamdhenu Ispat 
Limited

World’s greatest 2015 
amongst Asia and GCC

Asia’s most promising 
brand 2015-16 by World 
Consulting and Research 
Corporation

Indian Power Brand 2016 
awards

World’s Greatest Brands 
2017-18 amongst Asia & GCC 
for steel as well as paints 
division

international 
quality standards

Adopted modern 
technology of 
CRM Belgium to 
manufacture TMT 
steel bars

Production of 
Steel bars

Innovated 
franchisee business 
model

IPO – Listed 
at NSE/BSE

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
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Forayed into 
decorative 
paints business – 
COLOUR DREAMZ

Launched 
Kamdhenu 
structural steel

Name changed from 
Kamdhenu Ispat 
Limited to Kamdhenu 
Limited – positioned 
as a marketing and 
branding company

Launched 
Kamdhenu 
SS10,000 premium 
TMT Barz

Became the 
largest selling 
TMT brands

Own 
manufacturing 
expansion

Launched Kamdhenu 
Nxt – Interlock steel 
for next generation

Board 
recommendation 

paint division
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CHAIRMAN & 
MANAGING 
DIRECTOR’S 
MESSAGE

as both the divisions – steel and paint – performed as per 

 
`
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and the perseverance are to retain our name at the 

 
 

THE ‘HOUSING FOR ALL’ PROJECT 

MILLION URBAN HOUSES BY THE 
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STEEL
BUSINESS SEGMENTS

TMT Steel bars

 

 

 

 

 

 

33
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Kamdhenu SS 10000 TMT Bars

Kamdhenu – NXT
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STRUCTURAL STEEL
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PROFILE SHEETS
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PAINTS
DECORATIVE PAINTS 
– Colour dreamz

 

tonnes 

 
s
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BREAK-UP OF REVENUE

43 
Premium 
and High

Margin 
products

8 
Solvent-

based
products

35 
Water-based 
products

14 
Powder-based
products

%

OUR OFFERINGS

Emulsion

Dual Paint Series (New Launches)

Kamo Hi Sheen

Kamodual Luxury 
Emulsion

Weather Supreme

Velvety

Kamodual Premium 
Emulsion

Kamodual Gold 
Emulsion

Weather Classic

Sheen n Shine Kamo Star 
(Interior)

Kamo Shield

Kamo Silky Kamo Blaster

Kamo Star 
(Exterior)
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Primer

Distempers

Enamels

SOLVENT-

ENAMELS

Exterior Sealer

Kamo Silky

Kamo Lite WB Enamel

Wood Primer

Kamo Dual Primer 

Bunty

Red Oxide

Universal Primer

Kyson

Babli

Universal Primer (ST)

16 | KAMDHENU LIMITED



Designer Range, Stainers, Speciality and Other Coatings

Construction Chemical

Cement 
Paint

PAINT

ANTI-
 

Kamo Glitter

Kamo Crete CRP Kamo Shora SealKamo Proof 
ALW

Kamo Tint

Kamwood Melamine Kamwood NC 
Sanding Sealer

Kamo Clear 
Lacquer

Kamo Replica

Wall 
Putty Other Products

Kamo Shine Luster Aluminum Paints, 

Kamo Shine GP AluminiumPaint, Road 

Marking Paints, Kamo Lite Roof Paint, 

Kamo Lite Heat Resistant Paint, Kamo 

FillerKamo CareKamo PlastKamo Cem

Kamo Tint 
Advance

Colorants

Kamwood 
Polyurethane 
Wood Finish

Kamo Thin 
Thinner
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FORMING THE FLOW
BETTER THE WORKFLOW, MORE THE PROFIT. FEW INSIGHTS BASED ON 
THOROUGH ANALYSIS AND SOME EXTRA CARE OF PRODUCTION, TRAINING 
DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION COULD DO THAT.

Expansions Technical know-how
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Research and 
development

constant innovation in 

product and exploration of 

the mission and vision of the 

setup inside the plant help 

and enhance the experience 

steel rebars as per their 

De-merger of 
paints business
The constant search for 

decided to outsource the 

Getting more 
eco-friendly

The resultant product found a 
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ACCELERATING GROWTH: 
ASSET-LIGHT FRANCHISE MODEL, 
LEADING THE WAY

Franchisee 
value chain 

process

criteria and minimum 
 

that the franchisee unit 

franchisee to use 

Franchisee manufactures 
product based on 

distributors across 
the nation

Dealers and distributors 
sell the product to the 

client
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` 

Crore

BRAND SALES 
TURNOVER

` 

Crore

ROYALTY BASED 
INCOME

Production 
Capacity

PRODUCT-WISE FRANCHISEE

10 
Structural 
Steel

22 
Colour-Coated 

44 
Steel Rebars
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WIDESPREAD OPERATIVE 
PRESENCE
THE FRANCHISEE-BASED MODEL ENABLED DECENTRALIZATION OF PRODUCTION 
ACROSS THE NATION AND EFFECTIVELY HELPED IN REACHING OUT TO MORE 
CUSTOMERS.

FRANCHISEE DEALERS AND 
DISTRIBUTORS

SALES DEPOTS STATES
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Franchisee Units

TMT Plants and Paints 
Division (Owned)

Jammu & Kashmir

Himachal 
Pradesh

Uttarakhand

Delhi

Haryana

Punjab

Rajasthan

Gujarat Madhya 
Pradesh

Uttar 
Pradesh

Jharkhand

Meghalaya

Nagaland

Manipur

MizoramTripura

Sikkim

Assam

West Bengal

Arunachal 
Pradesh

Chhattisgarh

Telangana
Maharashtra

Andhra Pradesh

Karnataka

Tamil Nadu

Kerala

Goa

Odisha

Bihar
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RIDING ON NATION’S TRUST

WHAT TICKS FOR THE BRAND?

BRAND EXPENSES

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

48

63
69 70

103

BRAND EXPENSES TO 
OVERALL BRAND SALES

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

0.8

1.1 1.1

0.9 0.9

%

 

 

Quick production process

Delivering small orders Low supply chain cost
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PRINT AND OUTDOOR PROMOTION

Newspaper Electronic 
advertising

Outdoor 
advertising

Celebrity 
participation in 
business event

level and to form an emotional 

National Newspaper

Regional Newspaper
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KEY PERFORMANCE 
HIGHLIGHTS
REVENUES

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

967.99
841.19 824.87

1,179.77 1,232.39

PAT

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

8.03 8.15 8.10

15.67

22.47

EBITDA

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

30.30 32.09 33.12

44.43

53.83

EBITDA MARGIN 

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

3.13

3.82 4.02 3.77

4.36

%
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PAT MARGIN

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

0.83
0.97 0.98

1.33

1.82

%

ROE

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

8.10 7.70
7.05

10.91
12.40

%

ROCE

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

12.5 12.6
11.6

15.9
17.3

%

FIXED ASSET TURNOVER

2014-15   2015-16   2016-17   2017-18   2018-19

20
18

19

16
14

Days

SEGMENT-WISE REVENUE BREAKUP %

78 
Steel 
Segment

22 
Paint 

Segment
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Whole Time Director Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director Independent Director Independent Director

Independent DirectorIndependent Director
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

 

 
Whole Time Director

 
Whole Time Director

 
Whole Time Director

 
Independent Director

 
Independent Director

 
Independent Director

 
Independent Director

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Karvy Fintech Private Limited 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Tel  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Tel  
 

 
 

Tel

 
 

Tel

 
 

Tel
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Dear Member(s),

The Board of Directors of your Company takes pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fifth Annual Report on the business and 

year ended 31st March, 2019.

The results of operations for the year under review are given below:

(` in Lakhs)

Revenue from Operations 1,23,239.62 1,18,732.52
Other Income 37.64 71.44
Total Revenue 1,23,277.26 1,18,803.96
Total Expenses 1,19,782.65 1,16,362.93

3,494.61 2,441.03
Total Tax Expenses 1,247.55 874.28

2,247.06 1,566.75
2,255.87 1,541.49

Paid up Capital 2,640.00 2,340.00
Earnings per Share of face value of `10 Each              Basic (In `) 8.98 6.70
                                                                                              Diluted (In `) 8.90 6.69

The Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year 
have been prepared in accordance with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind-AS) 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and other recognized accounting practices 
and policies to the extent applicable. Necessary 
disclosures as regards to the key impact areas & other 
adjustments upon transition to Ind-AS reporting have 
been made under the Notes to Financial Statements.

`1,23,239.62 Lakhs during the year under review 
as against `1,18,732.52 Lakhs during the previous 

 
` `1,23,277.26 in 

`1,19,782.65 Lakhs as compared to 
`

increase in sales volume and consequent expenses.

 
` `2,441.03 

at `  
`

`

2018-19 compared to `

Basic Earnings per Share (EPS) reached ̀  8.98/- compared 
to ` 6.70/- in the previous year.

The Company considers its business segments as 
the primary segments to monitor the performance of 
each of its business segments on regular basis and 
therefore these have been considered as reportable 
segments under Ind-AS 108 on Segment Reporting. 
The reportable Segments represent “Steel” and 

of the business segments are as per Ind-AS.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 01-30 STATUTORY REPORTS 31-97 FINANCIAL SECTION 98-147

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 | 31



( )

(` in Lakhs)

 - Steel           96,256.99            98,607.94 
 - Paints           26,982.63            20,124.58 

  
 - Steel             5,462.93              4,552.67 
 - Paints                820.04                 701.14 

            6,282.98              5,253.81 
 Less: Finance cost             1,150.94              1,231.15 
 Less: Other Unallocable Expenditure net of Income             1,637.43              1,581.63 

  
 - Steel           21,077.55            19,523.20 
 - Paints           19,911.18            17,429.81 
 - Unallocable                525.37                 539.17 

  
 - Steel             6,676.71              8,886.16 
 - Paints           15,734.86            13,285.20 
 - Unallocable                988.23                 960.98 

record of dividend payment. The Board had remained 
consistent in Dividend Policy of the Company in its 
meeting held on 2nd May, 2019. In line with its aforesaid 

Dividend of `1/- per equity share in its meeting held on 
2nd May, 2019 which will be paid subject to approval 
by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The dividend, if declared in the Annual General 
Meeting, shall be paid on or before 30th October, 2019.

The total dividend pay-out (including Dividend 
Distribution tax) during the current year is `286.45 
Lakhs as against `222.52 Lakhs for the previous year. 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
of the Company shall remain closed from 22nd 
September 2019 to 30th September, 2019 (both days 

Annual General Meeting. The Annual General Meeting 
is scheduled to be held on 30th September, 2019.

The Company has not transferred any amount to the 

March, 2019.

changes and commitments have occurred between 

position of the Company. As required under section 
134(3) of the Act, the Board of Directors informs the 

been no material changes.

During the year under review, the Company issued & 
allotted 30,00,000 equity shares (10,00,000 shares on 
12th April, 2018 & 20,00,000 shares on 5th January 
2019) at an issue price of `100 each on conversion of 
convertible warrants issued on Preferential basis on 
6th July, 2017. Pursuant to the above allotment, the 
issued & paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
increased to & stood, as on 31st March, 2019, at  
`26,40,00,000 divided into 2,64,00,000 equity shares of 
`10/- each fully paid up. Out of those 30,00,000 fresh 
shares allotted as aforesaid, listing of 20,00,000 shares 
is pending before the stock exchanges.
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At present, the Company’s shares are listed on BSE 
Ltd. (BSE) & National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
(NSE) with effect from 9th May, 2006, post its initial 
public offering (IPO).

During the year under review, your Company has not 
invited or accepted any Deposits from the public/
members pursuant to the provisions of Sections 73 
and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

During the year under review, the Company has not 
made any loans or, guarantee, or provided any security 
or made any investments pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rules made thereunder.

As per the provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations, your Company has formulated a Policy on 
Related Party Transactions which is also available on 
Company’s website at https://www.kamdhenulimited.
com/code-conduct.php.

This Policy is intended to ensure due and timely 

transactions between the Company and any of its 
Related Parties in compliance with the applicable laws 
and regulations as may be amended from time to time. 
The provisions of this Policy are designed to govern 
the approval process and disclosure requirements to 
ensure transparency in the conduct of Related Party 
Transactions in the best interest of the Company and 
its shareholders and to comply with the statutory 

with the review and approval of Material Related Party 
transactions keeping in mind the potential or actual 
conflicts of interest that may arise because of entering 
into these transactions. 

The Company has not entered into any transaction 
with related party as mentioned in Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the period under review. 
Accordingly, there is no transaction which required to 
be reported in Form AOC-2.

( )

managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, 
responsibility and accountability thereby upholding 
the important dictum that an Organization’s corporate 
governance philosophy is directly linked to high 
performance. The Company understands and respects its 

and society at large and strives to serve their interests, 
resulting in creation of value for all its stakeholders.

In terms of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 
separate section on “Corporate Governance” with a 
detailed compliance report on corporate governance 

Company Secretaries, Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company regarding compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance, forms part of this Annual Report. 
The report on Corporate Governance also contains 
certain disclosures required under the Companies Act, 
2013. Annexed as Annexure-V to this report.

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the 
year under review as stipulated under Listing Regulations 
with the Stock Exchanges in India is presented in a 
separate section forming part of this Directors’ Report.
Annexed as Annexure-VI to this report.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, not 
less than 2/3rd (Two-third) of the total number of 
Directors (other than Independent Directors) shall be 
liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, pursuant to 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 103 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company. Mr. Saurabh 
Agarwal (DIN: 00005970) and Mr. Sachin Agarwal 
(DIN: 01188710), directors retiring by rotation in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting, being eligible, 
offered themselves for their reappointment. Brief 
resume, nature of expertise, details of directorships 
held in other companies of the Directors proposed to 
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be re-appointed, along with their shareholding in the 
Company, as stipulated under Secretarial Standard 
2 and Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, is 
appended as an Annexure to the Notice of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

The Company in its Annual General Meeting held on 
27th September, 2016, approved there- appointment 
and remuneration of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 
00005981) Chairman & Managing Director  and, Mr. Sunil 
Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 00005973), Mr. Saurabh Agarwal  
(DIN: 00005970) and Mr. Sachin Agarwal  (DIN: 01188710) 
as Whole Time Directors of the Company for a period of 3 
years effect from 1st April, 2017 upto 31st March, 2020. 
As their term expires on 31st March, 2020 and there is 
also requirement of revision of the remuneration payable 
to them, all of the above four Whole Time Directors has 
been recommended for Re-appointment for a term of 
three years effect from 1st April, 2020 upto 31st March, 
2023 with their remuneration in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting by way of special resolution.

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar (DIN: 0031904), Mr. 
Ramesh Chand Surana (DIN: 00089854), Mrs. Nishal 
Jain (DIN: 06934656) were appointed as Independent 
Directors pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act 
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and provisions of 

consecutive years w.e.f. 1st April, 2014 up till 31st March, 
2019. They were re-appointed as Independent Directors 
on the Board of the Company for their second term in 
the board meeting held on 24th January, 2019 subject 
to approval of members in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting by way of special resolution.

Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey (DIN: 00190017) was 
appointed as Independent Directors pursuant to 
Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules 
framed there under and provisions of erstwhile Listing 

w.e.f. 1st April, 2014 up till 31st March, 2019, he resigned 
from directorship with effect from 30th March, 2019 due 
to personal reasons. To comply with the requirements 
of composition of the board of directors, Company was 

board meeting or 3 months, whichever is later. Pursuant 
to this Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain (DIN: 00038529) has 
been appointed as additional and independent director 
with effect from 2nd May, 2019 for a term of two years 
subject to approval of the members of the Company in 
the ensuing Annual General meeting.

Besides this, there was no change in the composition 
of the Board of Directors during the year.

The Board of Directors met Six (6) times during the 

meeting of Independent Directors were also held on 
29th March, 2019.  As on 31st March, 2019, the Board 
has 8 (Eight) committees, namely,

 Audit Committee

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

 Borrowing Committee

 Corporate Social responsibility Committee

 Allotment Committee

  Share Transfer committee 

Management Committee

All the recommendations made by committees of 
Board were accepted by the Board. A detailed update 
on the Board, its composition, detailed charter including 
terms and reference of various Board Committees, 
number of Board and Committee meetings held during 

at each meeting is provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report.

The Company has formulated an effective Whistle 
Blower Mechanism and a policy that lays down the 
process for raising concerns about unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. This policy is further 
explained under Corporate Governance section, 
forming part of this Report and the full text of the 
Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
www.kamdhenulimited.com.

employee have been denied access to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee. There no complaints received 
through the said mechanism which pertain to the 
nature of complaints sought to be addressed through 
this platform. 

The Risk Management is overseen by the Audit 
Committee of the Company on a continuous basis. 
The Committee oversees Company’s process and 

( )
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policies for determining risk tolerance and review 
management’s measurement and comparison of 
overall risk tolerance to established levels. Major 

systematically addressed through mitigating actions 
on a continuous basis. 

The Company has an effective risk management 
procedure, which is governed at the highest level by the 
Board of Directors, covering the process of identifying, 
assessing, mitigating, reporting and review of critical 
risks impacting the achievement of Company’s 
objectives or threaten its existence. Full text of the 
Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
www.kamdhenulimited.com.

statements. During the year, such controls were tested 
and no reportable material weakness in the design or 
operation were observed.

The Company has also put in place adequate systems of 
Internal Control to ensure compliance with policies and 
procedures which is commensurate with size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. The Company has appointed 

Internal Audit of the Company is regularly carried out to 
review the internal control systems and processes. The 
internal Audit Reports along with implementation and 
recommendations contained therein are periodically 
reviewed by Audit Committee of the Board.

material orders have been passed by the regulators or 
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and Company’s operations in the future.

As required by Section 92(3) read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is 
furnished in Annexure III to this Report. Copy of the 
Annual Return will be placed on the website of the 
Company at www.kamdhenulimited.com.

The Company has received necessary declaration 
from Independent Non Executive Directors of the 
Company under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 

2013, that he/she continue to meet with the criteria of 
independence as prescribed under  Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and  the relevant regulations of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Further, there has been no change 
in the circumstances which may affect their status as 
Independent Director during the year. The Independent 

with the Company’s code of conduct.

In compliance with the requirements of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has put in place a 
familiarization programme for the Independent 
Directors to familiarize them with their roles, rights and 
responsibility as Directors, the working of the Company, 
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, 
business model etc. A note on the familiarization 
programme adopted by the Company for orientation 
and training of the Directors, and the Board evaluation 
process undertaken in compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations 
is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, 
which forms part of this Annual Report. The same is 
also available on the website of the Company at www.
kamdhenulimited.com.

Listing Regulations laying down the key functions of 
the Board, mandates that the Board shall monitor and 
review the Board Evaluation Process and also stipulates 
that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Company shall lay down the evaluation criteria 
for performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 states that 
a formal evaluation of Board, its committees and 
individual directors needs to be carried out either by 
board, by Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
or by independent external Agency. Further, schedule 
IV to the Companies Act, 2013 states that performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by 
the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director 
being evaluated.

In accordance with the aforesaid provisions, the Board 
has carried out the annual performance evaluation of 
its own performance, the Directors individually as well 
as the evaluation of the working of its Committees.

The performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees 
and individual Directors was conducted and the same was 

( )
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based on questionnaire and feedback from all the Directors 
on the Board as a whole, Committees and self-evaluation.

Directors, who were  designated, held separate discussions 
with each of the Directors of the Company and obtained 
their feedback on overall Board effectiveness as well as 
each of the other Directors.

Based on the questionnaire and feedback, the performance 
of every director was evaluated in the meeting of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The 
meeting of NRC also reviewed performance of Managing 
Director on goals (quantitative and qualitative) set at the 
beginning of the year.

Some of the performance indicators based on which 
the evaluation takes place are-attendance in the 
meetings and quality of preparation/participation, 
ability to provide leadership, work as team player. In 
addition, few criteria for independent directors include 
commitment to protecting/enhancing interests of all 
shareholders, contribution in implementation of best 
governance practices. Performance criteria for Whole-
time Directors includes contribution to the growth of 
the Company, new ideas /planning and compliances 
with all policies of the Company.

Pursuant to Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 
and Listing Regulations, one separate meeting of 
Independent Directors (“Annual ID meeting”) was held 
during the year i.e. on 29th March, 2019, without the 
attendance of Executive directors and members of 
Management, which reviewed the performance of the 
Board (as a whole), the non-independent directors and 
the Chairman. After convening the Annual ID meeting, the 
collective feedback of each of the Independent Directors 
was discussed by the Chairman of the NRC with the 
Board’s Chairman covering performance of the Board as 
a whole; performance of the non-independent directors 
and performance of the Board Chairman.

In addition, the Company encourages regular separate 
meetings of its independent directors to update them 
on all business-related issues and new initiatives.

M/s B S D & Co, Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm 
Registration No. 000312S)  were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of your Company pursuant to your approval at 
the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 

The Board has duly examined the Statutory Auditors’ 

necessary, have been included in the Notes to Accounts 
section of the Annual Report. The Report does not 

adverse remark.

No fraud has been reported under Section 143(2) of 
the Act by the Auditors of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Company had appointed M/s Chandrasekaran 
Associates, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company to undertake  its Secretarial 

The Secretarial Auditors have submitted their report, 

provisions of applicable corporate laws. The Report does 

adverse remark. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed 
as Annexure-IV to this report.

As per the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
the Company had appointed M/s Chandrasekaran 
Associates, Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor 

As per section 134(3) read with rule 8(5), the maintenance 

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, is required by the Company and accordingly 
such accounts and records are made and maintained.

The Company has received the consent and eligibility 

accordance with the provision of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the Board, on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved 
the appointment of M/s K. G. Goel & Associates, 

year ending 31st March, 2020. The Cost Auditors will 

March, 2020 on or before the due date.

The Board has duly examined the Cost Auditors’ Report 

( )
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reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark.

Since the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 

shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

M/s. D V Aggarwala & Co, Chartered Accountants, 
(ICAI Firm Reg No 001263C) performed the duties 

year 2018-19 and their report is reviewed by the audit 
committee on quarterly basis.

For your Company, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) means the integration of social, environmental 
and economic concerns in its business operations. 
CSR involves operating Company’s business in a 
manner that meets or exceeds the ethical, legal, 
commercial and public expectations that society 
has of businesses. In alignment with vision of the 
Company, through its CSR initiatives, will continue 
to enhance value creation in the society through 
its services, conduct & initiatives, so as to promote 
sustained growth for the society.

Pursuant to the Section 135 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted the 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of 
the Board of Directors. The composition and terms 
of reference of the CSR Committee is provided in the 
Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part 
of this Report. The CSR Policy as recommended by 
the CSR Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors in pursuance of the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 is uploaded on website https://www.
kamdhenulimited.com. The CSR Committee of the 
Company helps the Company to frame, monitor 
and execute the CSR activities of the Company. The 

for effective discharge of the social responsibility of 
your Company. The CSR Policy of your Company 
outlines the Company’s philosophy & the mechanism 
for undertaking socially useful programmes for welfare 
& sustainable development of the community at large 
as part of its duties as a responsible corporate citizen. 

Further the Annual Report on CSR activities in 
pursuance of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, describing 
inter-alia the initiatives taken by the Company in 
implementation of its CSR Policy is enclosed as 
Annexure- II and forms part of this Report.

The Companies Act, 2013 has made it compulsory for 
every company to comply the two secretarial standards 
(SS) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI) under the provisions of Section 118(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Board 
meetings (SS-1) and General meetings (SS-2). The 
Company has complied with provisions of Secretarial 
Standards during the year under review. 

The particulars as prescribed in terms of Section 
134 of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, pertaining to the conservation 
of energy , technology absorption and foreign exchange  
earnings and outgo, to the extent possible in opinion of 
your directors, and forming part of this Report is given 
in Annexure-I to this Report.

The Company has implemented the “Green Initiative” 
to enable electronic delivery of notice/documents/ 
annual reports to shareholders. Electronic copies of the 
Annual Report 2018-19 and Notice of the 25th Annual 
General Meeting will be sent to all members as on cut 
of date, whose e-mail addresses are registered with 
the Company/Depository Participant(s). For members, 
who have not registered their e-mail addresses, 
physical copies of the Annual Report 2018-19 and the 
Notice of the 25th Annual General Meeting will be sent 
in permitted mode. Members requiring a physical copy 
may send a request to the Company Secretary.

The Company is providing e-voting facility to 
all members to enable them to cast their votes 
electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice. 
This is pursuant to section 108 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with relevant rules thereon. The instructions 
for e-voting are provided in the Notice of the AGM. 

Human resources management of the Company 
goes beyond the set boundaries of compensation, 

( )
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considers people as its biggest assets and ‘Believing in 
People’ is at the heart of its human resource strategy. 

management and succession planning practices, strong 
performance management and learning and training 
initiatives to ensure that your Company consistently 
develops inspiring, strong and credible leadership. During 
the year, the focus of your Company was to ensure that 
young talent is nurtured and mentored consistently, 
that rewards and recognition are commensurate with 
performance and that employees have the opportunity 

an organization structure that is agile and focused on 
delivering business results. With regular communication 
and sustained efforts, it is ensuring that employees 
are aligned on common objectives and have the right 

strongly believes in fostering a culture of trust and mutual 
respect in all its employees and seeks to ensure that 
company’s values and principles are understood by all 
and are the reference point in all people matters. 

The Company has continuously adopted structures 
that help to attract best external talent and promote 
internal talent to higher roles and responsibilities. The 
Company providing an open work environment fostering 
continuous improvement and development that helped 
several employees realize their career aspirations during 
the year. 

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and 
harmonious industrial relations at all levels. The 
enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of employees have 
enabled the Company to remain at the leadership 
position in the industry. It has taken various steps to 
improve productivity across organization.

The Company’s Health and Safety Policy commits to 
provide a healthy and safe work environment to all 
employees. The Company’s progressive workforce 

and welfare have addressed stress management, 
promoted work life balance.

Our ESOP schemes help us share wealth with our 
employees and are part of a retention-oriented 
compensation program. They help us meet the dual 
objective of motivating key employees and retention 
while aligning their long-term career goals with that of 
the Company.

has implemented the Kamdhenu Employee Stock 
Option Scheme 2017 and granted 6,15,000 Options 
to eligible employees as per the scheme against 
which the employees shall be allotted equal number 
of equity shares in next 4 years. In furtherance the 

trench on completion of 1 year after granting options 
on exercising of options vested by the employees and 
allotted shares in the board meeting held on 2nd May, 
2019 at a predetermined exercising price of `50/- 
per option. At present the listing of those shares are 
pending with the Stock exchanges i.e. on BSE Ltd. 
(BSE) &National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE). 
Details of the implemented Kamdhenu Employee 
Stock Option Scheme 2017 are as follows.

 `

615000 29th January, 2018 29th January, 2019 153750 143250 2nd May, 2019 7162500

( )
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 At Kamdhenu, all employees are of equal value. There 
is no discrimination between individuals at any point on 
the basis of race, colour, gender, religion, political opinion, 
national extraction, social origin, sexual orientation or age. 
At Kamdhenu, every individual is expected to treat his/her 
colleagues with respect and dignity. The Whistle-Blower 
& Protection Policy provides a platform to all employees 
for reporting unethical business practices at workplace 
without the fear of reprisal and help in eliminating any kind 
of misconduct in the system. The Policy also includes 
misconduct with respect to discrimination or sexual 
harassment. The Company also has in place `Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment Policy .̀ This Anti-Sexual Harassment 
Policy of the Company is in line with the requirements 
of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All 
employees are covered under this policy. 

 The Company has complied with the provision relating to 
the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

complaint on sexual harassment under The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and is under 
inquiry and investigation i.e. pending for resolution.

 During the year there is no change in nature of business 
of the Company under review.

 During the year under review, there is no such Company 
which has become or ceased to be Company’s 
subsidiary, joint venture or associate Company.

www.
)

 The following documents have been placed on the 
website at www.kamdhenulimited.com in compliance 
with the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and 
other statutory requirements:

 DETAILS OF UNPAID DIVIDEND AS PER IEPF 
(UPLOADING OF INFORMATION REGARDING UNPAID 

RULES, 2012

WITH RELEVANT DOCUMENTS AS PER SECTION 136(1) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

 CODE OF CONDUCT AND WORK PLACE ETHICS

 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS & SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

 CODE OF PRACTICES & PROCEDURES FOR FAIR 
DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE 
INFORMATION

 CODE OF CONDUCT TO REGULATE, MONITOR AND 

 FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

EVENTS AND INFORMATION

 THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENT OF 

 APPOINTMENT LETTER OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

 The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment 
and remuneration including criteria for determining 

a director and other matters provided under section 
178(3) of the Act are available on the website of the 
Company under the heading investor zone at www.
kamdhenulimited.com. Further, information about 
elements of remuneration package of individual 
directors is provided in the extract of Annual Return in 
Form MGT-9 enclosed as Annexure-III to this Report.
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is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy as approved 
and adopted by Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee  and the Board of Directors of the Company, 
enumerating  the criteria laid down  for appointment, 
evaluation and remuneration of Directors and key 

positive attributes and independence of Directors 
and/or key managerial personnel, is available on  the 
website of Company at https://www.kamdhenulimited.
com/Financial-Results/Nomination-Remuneration-
Policy.pdf.

  In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated 
Code of Conduct for the Board members and senior 
management personnel of the Company so that the 

transparent manner without having any conflict of 
personal interests with the interests of the Company. 
All the members of the Board and senior management 

of Conduct. Code of Conduct for the Board members 
and senior management personnel is available at  the 
website of Company www.kamdhenulimited.com.

 It is hereby declared that the Company has obtained from 
each individual member of the Board of Directors and the 

violated the conditions of the said Code of Conduct.

 Directors are related to each other within the meaning of 
the term “relative” as per Section 2(77) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) regulations, 2015. Details given in 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report.

 During the year, the Non-Executive Directors of 
the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company.

.

  a.  Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 

(`

1. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Chairman & Managing Director 150.79        42.50
2. Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal Whole Time Director 147.79        41.66
3. Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Whole Time Director 144.79        40.81
4. Mr. Sachin Agarwal Whole Time Director 144.79        40.81
5. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Independent Director 3.70           1.04 
6. Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey Independent Director 3.40           0.96 
7. Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Independent Director 2.60           0.73 
8. Mrs. Nishal Jain Independent Director 2.10           0.59 

`3,54,798/-.
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1. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Chairman & Managing Director 55.79
2. Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal Whole Time Director 57.57
3. Mr. Saurabhagarwal Whole Time Director 59.48
4. Mr. Sachin Agarwal Whole Time Director 59.48
5. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Independent Director 8.82
6. Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey Independent Director 7.94
7. Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Independent Director 36.84
8. Mrs. Nishal Jain Independent Director 16.67
9. Mr. Harish Kumar Agarwal 16.88
10. Mr. Jogeswar Mohanty Company Secretary 37.28

 d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2019 are Seven Hundred Ten  (710).

 e.  Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

Personnel and other Employees.

    The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual employees and the 
Company. Through its compensation package, the Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high 

pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance and the performance of the individuals 

of the Company.

(`

1. Mr. Satish Kumar 
Agarwal

69 Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

                  
150.79 

B.E. 
(Mechanical)

12.09.1994 Vikas 
Refractories 

Pvt. Ltd., 
Managing 
Director, 

As per 
appointment 
letter/Board 
resolution

4.86 1. Father of 
Mr. Saurabh  

Agarwal & Mr.  
Sachin Agarwal

2. Brother of 
Mr. Sunil Kumar 

Agarwal

2. Mr. Sunil Kumar 
Agarwal

61 Whole Time 
Director

                  
147.79 

B.E. 
(Chemical)

33 01.01.2003 Family 
Business

As per 
appointment 
letter/Board 
resolution

5.85 Brother of Mr. 
Satish Kumar 

Agarwal

( )
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3. Mr. Saurabh 
Agarwal

44 Whole Time 
Director

                  
144.79 

B.E.

(Mechanical)

19 01.08.1998 NA As per 
appointment 
letter/Board 
resolution

3.13 1. Son of Mr. 
Satish Kumar 

Agarwal

2. Brother of Mr. 
Sachin Agarwal

4. Mr. Sachin 
Agarwal

40 Whole Time 
Director

                  
144.79 

B. Tech.

(Industrial

Engineering &

Management),

MBA

15 01.04.2004 NA As per 
appointment 
letter/Board 
resolution

3.50 1. Son of Mr. 
Satish Kumar 

Agarwal

2. Brother of Mr. 
Saurabh Agarwal

5. Mr. Raj Kumar 
Srivastava

49 NATIONAL 
HEAD - MKT

65.55 B. Com -1989 01.09.2007
experience in 
Acro Paints 
as Factory 
Manager.

6.  Mr. Harish Kumar 
Agarwal

51 CFO & Head-
Legal

32.03 B.Com, C.A-
1993

01.07.2006 Worked 
with Penam 
Leboratories 

Limited as GM-
Finance for 8 

7. Mr. Himanshu 
Maniar

48 GM-Sales 28.79 B. Com 24 years 14.02.2019 Worked with 
Zydex Industry 

as GM-
Marketings.

Permanent

8. Mrs. Vipil Agarwal 47 GM - 
Business 

Development

27.53 M.A., B.Ed. 01.08.2006 Free lancer Permanent NIL

9. Mr. Ramaswamy 
Janak

63 GM-Sales & 
Marketing

24.99 MBA,

LLM,

MIMA

35 years 18.04.2018 Worked with 
Killick Guard 

Speciality 
Product Ltd as 

GM-Sales & 
Marketing

Permanent NIL

10. Mrs. Nisha 
Adlakha

34 Global 
Business 

Head

24.01 M.B.A 
(Finance & 
Marketing)

16.03.2018 Country 
Manager 
(Sales & 

Operation) 
Graphenstone, 

Spain

Permanent NIL NO

( )
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professionalism, integrity and continuous 

utilisation of the Company’s resources for sustainable 

to place on record its appreciation for the dedication 
and commitment of your Company’s employees at all 
levels which has continued to be our major strength.

 The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the 
employees have enabled the Company to remain as 
industry leaders. 

 The Board places on record its appreciation for the 
support and co-operation your Company has been 
receiving from its suppliers, distributors, stockists, 
dealers, business partners, franchisee units and 
others associated with the Company as its trading 

in its progress and has shared with them the rewards 
of growth. It will be your Company’s endeavour to 
build and nurture strong links with the trade based on 

with each other, consistent with consumer interests. 

 The Directors also take this opportunity to thank 
the shareholders, investors, customers, visitors to 
our websites, bankers, Government and Regulatory 
Authorities, Stock Exchanges and other stakeholders for 

and look forward for their continuous support.

Employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration not less than `102 Lakhs NIL

Employed for part of the year and in receipt of remuneration not less than `8.50 Lakhs per month. NIL

remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in 
excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along 
with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

NIL

Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00005981 DIN: 00005973 

Date :  2nd May, 2019 

Place : Gurgaon 

( )

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) 
and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, 

 a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been 
followed  along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures;

 b) The Directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

that period;

care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

 d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts 
on a going concern basis;

controls to be followed by the Company and that 

operating effectively.

 f) The directors had devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.
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In terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014, 
your directors furnished the following information:

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy The operations of the Company, being manufacturing, 

require extensive consumption of electricity. The Company 

ensures that all possible measures are taken to conserve 

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy

NIL

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation 

equipments

NIL

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption The Company had launched Kamdhenu SS 10000 TMT 

bar in 2013. Kamdhenu SS 10000 is the only product 

in its class featuring double ribs, double strength 

the bonding of concrete and steel and it also has the 

capacity to create performance of concrete upto 10,000 

Psi with right mixture of concrete. The technology for 

manufacturing of Kamdhenu SS 10000 TMT bar had 

been developed with the technical know-how from U.K.

The Company had also launched Kamdhenu Nxt – 

the Next Generation Interlock Steel in April, 2017. 

Kamdheunu Nxt has got the angular double rib 

design whose CNC notch cutting machine ensure 

uniform rib pattern which allows uniform bonding with 

concrete for the whole structure. Due to uniformity and 

critically designed ribs, fatigue strength and ductility of 

Kamdhenu Nxt is much superior to ordinary steel bars.

(ii)

reduction, product development or import substitution improvement in the quality of the product, increase in 

the margins of the Company and helps in positioning of 

the brand Kamdhenu in the premium segment.
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(iii)

year)-

(a) the details of technology imported Kamdhenu SS 10000 TMT bar had been developed with 

the technical know-how from U.K.

(b) the year of import; 2017

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed

(d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 

taken place, and the reasons thereof

N.A

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development The expenditure incurred on Research and Development 

is `56.79 Lakhs.

year has been provided hereunder:

(` in Lakhs)

Inflow Nil Nil
Outflow *422.61 60.75

Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00005981 DIN: 00005973 

Date :  2nd May, 2019 

Place : Gurgaon 

( )
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[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies  
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

The Company’s CSR objective is to ensure socio-economic development of the community through different participatory 
and need based initiatives in the best interest of the poor and deprived sections of the society so as to help them to become 
self-reliant and build a better tomorrow for themselves.
The Company’s CSR policy is uploaded on the website of the Company under the web-link https://www.kamdhenulimited.
com/Financial-Results/CSR-Policy.pdf

   To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy and the activities to be undertaken by the Company as per 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

  To recommend amount of expenditure on CSR activities;
  To monitor CSR Policy of the Company.

Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Chairman
Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal Member
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Member

 During the year, Two CSR Committee meetings were held on 28th May, 2018 and 19th December, 2018.

`

`

`34,05,180/-.

(b) Amount unspent, if any: `8,04,712/-.

`

1. J K Shanti Charitable Society 8,31,900
2. Water ATM Company 6,00,448
3. Rotary Club of Bhiwadi 11,63,020
4. Government Senior Secondary School, Alwar 5,100

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company and Chairman of CSR Committee, 

Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director 
DIN: 00005981 DIN: 00005973 

Date :  2nd May, 2019 
Place : Gurgaon 
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1. CIN L27101DL1994PLC134282

2. Registration Date 12/09/1994

3. Name of the Company Kamdhenu Limited

4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by shares, Non-Govt. Company

5. L-311, Khasra No.724, Street No.7, Mahipalpur Extention, 
New Delhi- 110037, 

Phone:  011-26784596

E-mail- kamdhenu@kamdhenulimited.com

Website: www.kamdhenulimited.com

6. Whether listed company
of India Limited

7.
Name, Address &Contact details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any.

Karvy Fintech Private Limited 

(Formerly Karvy Computershare Private Limited)

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31 & 32, Financial 
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, 
Hyderabad – 500032.

Te: +91-40-23420815-20 Fax: 91-40-23420814

E-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com

www.karvycomputershare.com

turnover of the Company shall be stated):

1. TMT Steel 24105 78.1

2. Paints 24222 21.9

NIL

1. NA NA NA 0 0

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 01-30 STATUTORY REPORTS 31-97 FINANCIAL SECTION 98-147

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 | 47



( )

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

CATE-
GORY 
CODE

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE BEGINNING OF 
THE YEAR 31/03/2018

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE END OF THE YEAR 
31/03/2019

% 
CHANGE 
DURING 

THE YEAR
CATEGORY OF SHARE-
HOLDER DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 

SHARES DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 
SHARES

(1)
(a) Individual /HUF 8486742 0 8486742 36.27 8486742 1000000 9486742 35.93 -0.33
(b) Central Government/

State Government(s)
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(c) Bodies Corporate 7804145 0 7804145 33.35 7804145 0 7804145 29.56 -3.79
(d) Financial Institutions 

/ Banks
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(a) Individuals (NRIs/
Foreign Individuals)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(b) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(c) Institutions  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(d)

Investor
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Others  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(1)
(a) Mutual Funds /UTI  194087 0 194087 0.83 293160 0 293160 1.11 0.28
(b) Financial Institutions 

/Banks
20635 0 20635 0.09 35992 0 35992 0.14 0.05

(c) Central Government / 
State Government(s)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(d) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(e) Insurance Companies  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(f) Foreign Institutional 

Investors 
8575 0 8575 0.04 0 0 0 0.00 -0.04

(g) Foreign Venture 
Capital Investors 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(h)
Investor

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(a) Bodies Corporate 1152436 0 1152436 4.92 2167026 700000 2867026 10.86 5.94
(b) Individuals

(i) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital 
upto `1 lakh 2652680 7141 2659821 11.37 2541087 7025 2548112 9.65 -1.71
(ii) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of `1 lakh 2910340 0 2910340 12.44 2926374 300000 3226374 12.22 -0.22

(c) Others
CLEARING 
MEMBERS                                  

36123 0 36123 0.15 8541 0 8541 0.03 -0.12

NBFC                                              24098 0 24098 0.10 15995 0 15995 0.06 -0.04
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CATE-
GORY 
CODE

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE BEGINNING OF 
THE YEAR 31/03/2018

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE END OF THE YEAR 
31/03/2019

% 
CHANGE 
DURING 

THE YEAR
CATEGORY OF SHARE-
HOLDER DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 

SHARES DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 
SHARES

NON RESIDENT 
INDIANS                              82332 0 82332 0.35 90662 0 90662 0.34 -0.01
NRI  NON-REPATRI
ATION                             20666 0 20666 0.09 23251 0 23251 0.09 0.00

(d)
Investor 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(1)
0  0  0  0.00  0 0  0  0.00 0.00 
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sr.
no Name of the Share Holder

No of Shares 
held as on 

31/03/2018

Change in 
Share holding 

No of Shares Held 
As on 31/03/2019

% Change 
in Share-
holding

Reason for 
change

Pledge Shares as on 
31/03/2018

Pledge 
Shares as on 
31/03/2019

1 KAMDHENU OVERSEAS LIMITED                                                       3050000 0 3050000 -1.48  0 0

2 KAMDHENU PAINT INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED                                               1521801 0 1521801 -0.74  0 0

3 KAMDHENU CONCAST LIMITED                                                        1428510 0 1428510 -0.69  0 0

4 SARITA AGARWAL                                                                  1354450 250000 1604450 0.29 Preferential 
allotment 0 0

5 SUNIL KUMAR AGARWAL                                                             1295292 250000 1545292 0.32 Preferential 
allotment 0 0

6 SATISH KUMAR AGARWAL                                                            1281842 0 1281842 -0.62  0 0
7 SHAFALI AGRAWAL                                                                 763842 0 763842 -0.37  0 0

8 SACHIN AGARWAL                                                                  673719 250000 923719 0.62 Preferential 
allotment 0 0

9 KAMDHENU INFRADEVELOPERS 
LIMITED                                                614900 0 614900 -0.30  0 0

10 KAMDHENU NUTRIENTS 
PRIVATE LIMITED                                              600000 0 600000 -0.29  0 0

11 588934 0 588934 -0.29  0 0

12 SAURABH AGARWAL                                                                 576500 250000 826500 0.67 Preferential 
allotment 0 0

13 RADHA AGARWAL                                                                   541877 0 541877 -0.26  0 0
14 SATISH KUMAR AGARWAL  (HUF)                                                    365900 0 365900 -0.18  0 0
15 SHATUL AGARWAL                                                                  337700 0 337700 -0.16  0 0
16 SUNIL KUMAR (HUF) 300280 0 300280 -0.15  0 0
17 SHIVANI AGARWAL                                                                 255235 0 255235 -0.12  0 0
18 244129 0 244129 -0.12  0 0
19 ISHITA AGARWAL                                                                  210716 0 210716 -0.10  0 0
20 144660 0 144660 -0.07  0 0
21 90600 0 90600 -0.04  0 0
22 50000 0 50000 -0.02  0 0

( )
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(please specify, if there is no change):

Sr. 
No

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the Company No. of shares % of total shares 

of the Company 

At the beginning of the year 16290887 69.62 69.62

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

10,00,000

(Preferential 
allotment) NA 17290887 65.50

At the End of the year   17290887 65.50

(Other than Directors,Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. 
No Type

Name of the Share 
Holder

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the Year

Date

Increase/
Decrease 
in share 
holding Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

No of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of 
the Com-

pany
No of 

Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 Opening Balance
FINANCIAL 

SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED                               

4241 0.02 31/03/2018   4241 0.02

 Purchase    05/10/2018 100000 Transfer 104241 0.43

 Purchase    26/10/2018 500000 Transfer 604241 2.48

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   804241 3.05

2 Opening Balance JATALIA FINANCE 

LIMITED                                            

0 0.00 31/03/2018   0 0.00

 Purchase    06/07/2018 116 Transfer 116 0.00

 Purchase    05/10/2018 186 Transfer 302 0.00

 Purchase    26/10/2018 500000 Transfer 500302 2.05

 Purchase    22/02/2019 82873 Transfer 583175 2.39

 Purchase    01/03/2019 24627 Transfer 607802 2.49

 Sale    15/03/2019 -86 Transfer 607716 2.49

 Sale    22/03/2019 -65 Transfer 607651 2.49

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   607651 2.30

3 Opening Balance
MUKUL 

MAHAVIRPRASAD 
AGRAWAL                                                

516831 2.21 31/03/2018   516831 2.21

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   516831 1.96

4 Opening Balance INDO JATALIA 
HOLDINGS 

LIMITED                                              

50 0.00
31/03/2018   50 0.00

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   500050 1.89

5 Opening Balance ASHA MUKUL 
AGRAWAL                                                         

471736 2.02 31/03/2018   471736 2.02

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   471736 1.79

( )
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Sr. 
No Type

Name of the Share 
Holder

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the Year

Date

Increase/
Decrease 
in share 
holding Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

No of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of 
the Com-

pany
No of 

Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

6 Opening Balance NIRDOSH GAUR .                                                             0 0.00 31/03/2018   0 0.00

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   300000 1.14

7 Opening Balance SANGEETHA S                                                                296890 1.27 31/03/2018   296890 1.27

 Sale    22/06/2018 -990 Transfer 295900 1.26

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   295900 1.12

8 Opening Balance
PRIVATE LIMITED                                             

234500 1.00 31/03/2018   234500 1.00

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   234500 0.89

9 Opening Balance INDIAN 
SECURITIES 

LIMITED                                                  

227852 0.97
31/03/2018   227852 0.97

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   227852 0.86

10 Opening Balance PRADEEP KUMAR 
GARG                                                         221859 0.95 31/03/2018   221859 0.95

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   221859 0.84

Sr. 
No

Shareholding of each  
Directors and each Key  
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Date

Increase/
Decrease 
in share 
holding

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

No. of shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the  
company

No. of shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the  
company

1 Satish Kumar Agarwal, Chairman & 
Managing Director

1281842 5.48 01.04.18 0 NA 1281842 5.48

Closing Balance 31.03.19 1281842 4.85

2 Sunil Kumar Agarwal, Wholetime 
Director

1295292 5.54 01.04.18 0 NA 1295292 5.54

250000 Preferential 
allotment

1545292 5.85

Closing Balance 31.03.19 1545292 5.85

3 Saurabh Agarwal, Wholetime 
Director

576500 2.46 01.04.18 0 NA 576500 2.46

250000 Preferential 
allotment

826500 3.13

Closing Balance 31.03.19 826500 3.13

4 Sachin Agarwal, Wholetime Director 673719 2.88 01.04.18 0 NA 673719 2.88

250000 Preferential 
allotment

923719 3.50

Closing Balance 31.03.19 923719 3.50

5 Mahendra Kumar Doogar, 
Independent Director

0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

( )
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Sr. 
No

Shareholding of each  
Directors and each Key  
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Date

Increase/
Decrease 
in share 
holding

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

No. of shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the  
company

No. of shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the  
company

6 Ramesh Chand Surana, Independent 
Director 0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

7 Nishal Jain, Independent Director 0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

8 Harish Kumar Agarwal, Chief 0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

9 Jogeswar Mohanty, Company 
Secretary

0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

(Amount in `)

Secured Loans 
excluding  
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total  

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 10925943 75219857 - 86145800

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 72576 6301139 - 6373715

* Addition 4930800 8891000 - 13821800

* Reduction 5778894 6846989 - 12625883

Net Change (848094) 2044011 - 1195917

i) Principal Amount 10150425 81247479 - 91397904

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - 2317528 - 2317528

( )
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Sr.
No Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total 
Amount

Satish  
Kumar  

Agarwal,  
MD

Sunil  
Kumar 

Agarwal, 
WTD

Saurabh 
Agarwal, 

WTD

Sachin 
Agarwal, 

WTD

1

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 
 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

15000000 14700000 14400000 14400000 58500000

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 79200 79200 79200 79200 316800

 
Income- tax Act, 1961 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

3 0 0 0 0 0

- others specify

0 0 0 0 0

5 0 0 0 0 0

Ceiling as per the Act Paid as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

Sr. 
No Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total 
Amount

Mahendra 
Kumar  
Doogar,  

Independent 
Director

Ramesh Chand 
Surana,  

Independent 
Director 

Radha  
Krishna Pan-
dey, Indepen-
dent Director 

Nishal Jain, 
Independent 

Director

1

Fee for attending board Meetings 180000 120000 180000 180000 660000

Fee for attending committee meetings 190000 140000 160000 30000 520000

Commission 0 0 0 0 0

Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A

Fee for attending board committee meetings 0 0 0 0 0

Commission 0 0 0 0 0

Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

( )
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Sr.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Harish Kumar 
Agarwal, Chief 

Jogeswar 
Mohanty, 
Company 
Secretary

Total

1
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)  

of the Income-tax Act, 1961
NA 31,63,400 12,25,000 43,88,400

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

39,600 0 39,600

Act, 1961
0 0 0

0 0 0
3 0 0 0

0 0 0
0 0 0

- others, specify 0 0 0
0 0 0

Type
Section of the 

Companies Act
Brief Description

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD / 
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made, if 
any (give Details)

Penalty 0 0 0 0 0
Punishment 0 0 0 0 0
Compounding 0 0 0 0 0

Penalty 0 0 0 0 0
Punishment 0 0 0 0 0
Compounding 0 0 0 0 0

Penalty 0 0 0 0 0
Punishment 0 0 0 0 0
Compounding 0 0 0 0 0

Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00005981 DIN: 00005973

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 2nd May, 2019

( )
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To
The Members, 

L-311, Khasra No.724 Street No.7, 
Mahipalpur Extention 
New Delhi 110037

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Kamdhenu Limited (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 

maintained by the Company and also the information 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. 
We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 

on March 31, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to 
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 

ended on March 31, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of 
Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
2018; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-- 

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; 

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

2014; 

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
Not Applicable

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client to the extent of securities 
issued; 

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
Not Applicable

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not 
Applicable

applicable to the Company based on their Sectors/ 
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Industry.

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses / Regulations of the following: 

(i)   Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has generally 
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act. Except that Mr. Radha Krishna 
Pandey, Independent Director of the Company, has resigned 
on 30th March, 2019 from the board of the Company and in 
his place Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain has been appointed as 
an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 02nd May, 
2019. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent in advance(and at a Shorter Notice for which 
necessary approvals obtained), and a system exists for 

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings 
are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of 
the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the 
Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period, the following 

on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

a.  The Board of Directors has approved Conversion 
of 20,00,000 share warrant into equity share, the listing 
approval of the same is still under process with the Stock 
Exchanges. 

State of Rajasthan before Regional Director, Northern 
region.

Company Secretaries

Partner
Membership No. A28994

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 2nd May, 2019

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date 
which is annexed as   Annexure-A and forms an integral part 
of this report.
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To
The Members, 

L-311, Khasra No.724 Street No.7, 
Mahipalpur Extention 
New Delhi 110037

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Company Secretaries

Partner
Membership No. A28994

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 2nd May, 2019
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 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

1. THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY
 Corporate Governance is creation and enhancing long-

term sustainable value for the stakeholders through 
ethically driven business process. It is imperative 
that our Company affairs are managed in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

 Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a 
valuable relationship and trust with all stakeholders. 
We consider stakeholders as partners in our success 
and we remain committed to maximizing stakeholders’ 
value, be it shareholders, employees, suppliers, 
customers, investors, communities or policy makers. 
This approach to value creation emanates from 
our belief that sound governance system, based on 
relationship and trust, is integral to creating enduring 

ethical conduct of businesses. 

 We believe, Corporate Governance is not just a 
destination, but a journey to constantly improve 
sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving 
target that we collectively strive towards achieving. Our 
multiple initiatives towards maintaining the highest 
standards of governance are detailed as follows.

 The key principles of our corporate governance are

  Satisfy both the letter of law and the spirit of law.

  Ensure high level of transparency and disclosure.

   Treating the management as trustee of 
shareholders’ capital.

   Have a simple and transparent corporate 
structure driven solely by business needs.

  Prioritizing stakeholders’ relationships.

1.1 Key Board activities during the year

 The Board provides and critically evaluates strategic 
direction of the Company, management policies and their 
effectiveness. Their main function is to ensure that long-
term interests of the stakeholders are being served. The 
agenda for Board is comprised of the detailed analysis 
and review of annual strategic / operational plans/ 
budgeting and capital allocation. The Board also reviews 
the business plans of all business segments including 
future business developments.

1.2   Role of the Company Secretary in Overall Governance 
Process

 The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that 
the Board (including committees thereof) procedures 
are followed and regularly reviewed. The Company 
Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details 

and documents are made available to the Directors 
and senior management for effective decision 
making at the meetings. The Company Secretary is 
primarily responsible to assist and advise the Board 
in the conduct of affairs of the Company, to ensure 
compliance with applicable statutory requirements 
and Secretarial Standards, to provide guidance to 
Directors and to facilitate convening of meetings. He 
interfaces between the management and regulatory 
authorities for governance matters.

1.3  Selection and Appointment of New Directors on the 
Board

 Considering the requirements of the skill-sets on the 
Board and the broad guidelines, eminent persons 
having an independent standing in their respective 

to the Company’s business and policy decisions are 
considered by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee for appointment of new Directors on the 
Board. The number of directorships and memberships 
in various committees of other companies by such 
persons is also considered.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
works with the Board to determine the appropriate 
characteristics, skills and experience required for the 
Board as a whole and for individual member. Board 
members are expected to possess expertise, leadership 
skills required to manage and guide a high growth.

1.4  Familiarization Program of Independent Directors

 The Independent directors of Kamdhenu Limited are 
eminent personalities having wide experience in the 

administration. Their presence on the Board has been 
advantageous and fruitful in taking business decisions. 
Independent Directors are appointed as per the policy 
of the Company, with management expertise and wide 
range of experience. The Directors appointed by the 
Board are given induction and orientation with respect 
to the Company’s vision, strategic direction, core values, 

matters and business operations by having one-to-one 
meetings. The new Board members are also requested 
to access the necessary documents / brochures, Annual 
Reports and internal policies available at our website 
to enable them to familiarize with the Company’s 
procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are 
made by Senior Management, Statutory and Internal 
Auditors at the Board/Committee meetings on business 
and performance updates of the Company, business 
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environment, business risks and its mitigation strategy, 
impact of regulatory changes on strategy etc. The details 
of the familiarization programme have been disclosed on 
the Company’s website https://www.kamdhenulimited.
com/Financial-Results/Familarization-Programme-for-
Independent-Directors.pdf

1.5  Prevention of Insider Trading

 Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 
read with Code of Fair Disclosure Practices for 
Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Conduct to 
regulate, monitor and report Trading by Insiders, the 
objective of the Code is to prevent purchase and / or 
sale of shares of the Company by an insider on the 
basis of unpublished price sensitive information. Under 
this Code, Designated persons (Directors, Advisors, 

are prevented from dealing in the Company’s shares 
during the closure of Trading Window and while in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information. 
All the designated employees are also required to 

the Code. The aforesaid Code is available at the website 
of the Company ( www.kamdhenulimited.com). 

1.6  Vigil Mechanism

 Your Company has established a mechanism called 
‘Vigil Mechanism’ for directors and employees to 
report to the appropriate authorities of unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of 
the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy 
and provides safeguards against victimization of 
employees who avail the mechanism. The policy 
permits all the directors and employees to report their 
concerns directly to the Ethics Counselor/Chairman of 
the Audit Committee of the Company. The policy with 
the name and address of the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee has been communicated to the employees 
by uploading the same on the website of the Company 
(www.kamdhenulimited.com). The employees can 
directly contact the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 In consonance with the requirements of Regulation 17 

of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the 
Company is constituted of an appropriate mix of executive 
and non-executive independent directors to maintain the 
Board’s independence, and to ensure exercising effective 
governance and control over its executive functioning. 
The Company follows the prescribed Board procedures 
and furnishes detailed notes in advance on the 

businesses to be dealt with at the Board Meetings. The 
Board has been meeting regularly ensuring that the gap 
between two consecutive meetings does not exceed one 
hundred and twenty days. The Company was generally in 
compliance with the requirements of Regulation 17 of the 
Listing Regulations, as applicable at the relevant time.

2.1 Composition of Board

 The Board of Directors, of the Company comprises 
of Eight (8) Directors, which includes Chairman & 
Managing Director i.e. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal and 
three (3) Whole Time Directors i.e, Mr. Sunil Kumar 
Agarwal, Mr. Saurabh Agarwal and Mr. Sachin Agarwal. 
The remaining Four (4) are Non-Executive Independent 
Directors i.e, Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar, Mr. 
Ramesh Chand Surana, Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain, 
one Woman Director i.e. Mrs. Nishal Jain. All statutory 
and material information was made available to the 
Board of Directors to ensure adequate disclosures and 
transparent decision making.  

 The Company has an appropriate size of the Board for 

experience and viewpoints. All directors are individuals 
of integrity and courage, with relevant skills and 
experience to bring judgment to bear on the business 
of the Company.

disclosures

 The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fee within 
the limits prescribed under Section 197(5) read with 
Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. No stock options were granted to Non-
Executive Directors during the year under review. The 
Non-Executive Directors did not have any pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company except the 

 Terms and conditions of appointment of independent 
directors have been disclosed on the Company’s 
website www.kamdhenulimited.com.

2.3  Board Meetings held and Directors attendance record

 The Board comprises of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal 
as Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Sunil Kumar 
Agarwal, Mr. Saurabh Agarwal and Mr. Sachin Agarwal 
as Whole Time Directors, Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar, 
Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana, Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain 
and Mrs. Nishal Jain as independent Directors amongst 
them, Mrs. Nishal Jain is independent Women Director. 
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 During the year 2018-19, 06 (six) Board meetings were held on 12th April, 2018, 28th May, 2018, 2nd August, 2018, 13th 
November, 2018, 5th January, 2019 and 24th January, 2019.

 One separate meeting of Independent Directors was also held on 29th March, 2019 which was attended by all independent 
directors.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Para C of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations, the names and categories of the Directors 
on the Board, number of Board meetings held during the year under review (FY 2018-19) and their attendance at Board 
Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 24th September, 2018 and also the number of Directorships 
and Committee positions held by them in other companies as on 31st March, 2019 is given hereunder.

Name of Directors Category

Board Meetings 
Attended out 

held during the 

Attendance 
at Last AGM 
held on 24th 
September, 

2018

Directorship  
held in other 
Companies

No. of Board 
Committee 

Chairmanship/ 
Memberships held 
in other Companies 
as at the year end@

ship
 

ship

Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal
 Executive Director, 

Chairman, Managing 
Director, Promoter

6 Yes 4 0 0

Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal
Executive Director-, 
Whole time Director, 

Promoter
6 Yes 6 0 0

Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Executive Director-, 
Whole Time Director 5 Yes 6 0 0

Mr. Sachin Agarwal Executive Director, 
Whole Time Director 6 Yes 4 0 0

Mr. Mahendra Kumar 
Doogar

Non Executive, 
Independent Director 6 Yes 8 6 3

Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Non Executive, 
Independent Director 4 No 3 2 0

Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey Non Executive, 
Independent Director 6 No 9 3 2

Mrs. Nishal Jain Non Executive, 
Independent Director 6 No 0 0 0

 @ Represents Chairmanships / Memberships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Indian 
companies

 Name of the listed entities where the person is the director and the category of the directorship.

Name of Directors Category Name of listed Companies 
where the person is a director

Category of the 
directorship

Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Executive Director, Chairman, Managing 
Director, Promoter

N.A N.A

Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal Executive Director-, Whole time Director, 
Promoter

N.A N.A

Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Executive Director-, Whole Time Director N.A N.A
Mr. Sachin Agarwal Executive Director, Whole Time Director N.A N.A
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Non Executive, Independent Director 1. Dalmia Refractories Limited

2. Morgan Ventures Limited

3. Frick India Limited

4. Sanghi Industries Limited

Director

Director

Director

Director
Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Non Executive, Independent Director N.A N.A
Mrs. Nishal Jain Non Executive, Independent Director N.A N.A
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by the board of directors as Required in the context of 
its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function Effectively 
and those actually available with the board;

  The list of Core skills/expertise/competencies 

i. Industry: Experience in and knowledge of the 
industry in which the organization operates i.e Steel 
and Paints.

ii. Technical: Technical/professional skills and specialist 
knowledge to assist with ongoing aspects of the 
board’s role.

iii. Governance: The essential governance knowledge 
and understanding that all directors should possess 
or develop if they are to be effective board members. 

iv. Behavioural: The attributes and competencies 
enabling individual board members to use their 
knowledge and skills to function well as team 
members and to interact with key stakeholders.

v. Strategic expertise – the ability to understand and 
review the strategy;

vi. Legal – the board’s responsibility involves 
overseeing compliance with numerous laws as 
well as understanding an individual director’s legal 
duties and responsibilities;

vii. Risk management – experience in managing areas 
of major risk to the organization;

viii. Managing people and achieving change – including 
experience 

ix. Industry knowledge – experience in similar 
industries.

responsibilities, putting the organization’s interests 
before personal interests, acting ethically;

xi. Curiosity and courage – a director must have 
the curiosity to ask questions and the courage to 
persist in asking or to challenge management and 
fellow board members where necessary;

xii. Interpersonal skills – a director must work well in a 
group, listen well, be tactful but able to communicate 
their point of view frankly;

xiii.  Genuine interest – in the organization and its 
business;

xiv.  Instinct – good business instincts and acumen, 
ability to get to the crux of the issue quickly;

xv. An active contributor 

i. Industry: Experience in and knowledge of the 
industry in which the organization operates i.e Steel 
and Paints.

ii. Technical: Technical/professional skills and specialist 
knowledge to assist with ongoing aspects of the 
board’s role.

iii. Governance: The essential governance knowledge 
and understanding. 

iv. Behavioural: The attributes and competencies 
enabling individual board members to use their 
knowledge and skills to function well as team 
members and to interact with key stakeholders.

v. Strategic expertise – the ability to understand and 
review the strategy;

vi. Legal responsibility involving overseeing compliance 
with numerous laws as well as understanding an 
individual director’s legal duties and responsibilities;

vii. Risk management – experience in managing areas 
of major risk to the organization;

viii. Managing people and achieving change – including 
experience with such aspect.

ix. Industry knowledge – experience in similar 
industries.

putting the organization’s interests before personal 
interests, acting ethically;

xi. Curiosity and courage to ask questions and 
the courage to persist in asking or to challenge 
management and fellow board members where 
necessary;

xii. Interpersonal skills – work well in a group, listen 
well, be tactful but able to communicate their point 
of view frankly;

xiii. Genuine interest – in the organization and its 
business;

xiv. Instinct – good business instincts and acumen, 
ability to get to the crux of the issue quickly;

xv. An active contributor. 
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that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors 

are independent of the management.

  Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent 

no other material reasons other than those provided.

 Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey (DIN: 00190017) was 
appointed as Independent Directors pursuant to Section 
149 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed 
there under and provisions of erstwhile Listing Agreement 

April  2014 up till 31st March, 2019, he resigned from 
directorship with effect from 30th March, 2019 before 
expiry of the tenure of his appointment due to personal 
reasons.

Pandey that there are no other material reasons other 
than those provided in the letter of resignation which has 

the ROC and Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

a) None of the Directors hold directorship in more than 20 
companies of which directorship in public company’s 
does not exceed 10 as per provisions of Section 165 of 
Companies Act, 2013

b) None of the Directors on the Board hold membership 
of more than 10 Committees,nor,Chairmanship of more 
than 5 Committees across all the companies in which 
they are Directors. Necessary disclosures regarding 
Committee positions including the changes in other 
listed companies as on 31st March, 2019 have been 
made by the Directors.

c) None of Whole Time Director of the Company holds the 
position of Independent Director in more than three (3) 
listed companies.

d) None of the Independent Directors of the Company holds 
the position of Independent Directors in more than seven 
(7) listed companies.

 The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of 
all laws applicable to the Company prepared by the 
Company.

 

  Inter-se relationship between Directors is given below 

within the meaning of the term “relative” as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Listing Regulations.

Sr. 
No. Name of Director Designation Relationship with other Directors

1. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Chairman & Managing Director 1. Father of Mr. Saurabh Agarwal & Mr.  Sachin Agarwal

2. Brother of Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal

2. Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal Whole Time Director Brother of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal

3. Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Whole Time Director 1. Son of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal

2. Brother of Mr. Sachin Agarwal

4.
Mr. Sachin Agarwal Whole Time Director 1. Son of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal

2. Brother of Mr. Saurabh Agarwal

5. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Independent Director Not Related to any Director

6. Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Independent Director Not Related to any Director

7. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Independent Director Not Related to any Director

8. Mrs. Nishal Jain Independent Director Not Related to any Director

NIL
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2.4  Code of Conduct

 The Board of Directors has laid Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The 
copies of Code of Conduct as applicable to the Directors as well as Senior Management of the Company are uploaded on the 
website of the Company (www.kamdhenulimited.com). The Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel have 

`

Name Basic
Perquisites/ 

Allowances

Retrials 
Total 

salary

Bonus/ 

Incentives/ 

Commission

Sitting 

Fee
Total

Stock 

Options

No. of 

equity 

Shares Held
Mr. Satish Kumar 

Agarwal (CMD)

150 0.792 0 150.792 0 0 150.792 0 1281842

Mr. Sunil Kumar 

Agarwal (WTD)

147 0.792 0 147.792 0 0 147.792 0 1545292

Mr. Saurabh 

Agarwal (WTD)

144 0.792 0 144.792 0 0 144.792 0 826500

Mr. Sachin Agarwal 

(WTD)

144 0.792 0 144.792 0 0 144.792 0 923719

Mr. Mahendra Mr. 

Doogar (ID)

0 0 0 0 0 3.70 3.70 0 0

Mr. Radha Krishna 

Pandey (ID)

0 0 0 0 0 3.40 3.40 0 0

Mr. Ramesh Chand 

Surana (ID)

0 0 0 0 0 2.60 2.60 0 0

Mrs. Nishal Jain (ID) 0 0 0 0 0 2.10 2.10 0 0

Service contracts: N.A.

Notice period: N.A.

Severance Fees: N.A.

Criteria for making payments to non executive directors of the Company are disclosed in the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy available in the website of the Company at www.kamdhenulimited.com.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

3.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committeeis formed in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
18 of Listing Regulations.

A.  Functions 
 Its functioning is as under:

i.  The Audit Committee presently consists of the two Non-Executive Independent Directors, and a Whole Time Director;

expertise;

iii.  The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director;
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iv.  The Chairman of the Audit Committee was 
present at the last Annual General Meeting held 
on 24th September, 2018.

B.  Terms of reference
 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include 
inter-alia:

i. The recommendation for appointment, 
remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the company;

ii. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

auditors’ report thereon;

transactions of the company with related parties;

v. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vi. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever it is necessary;

management systems;

viii. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through 
public offers and related matters.

ix. The Audit Committee may call for the comments 
of the auditors about internal control systems, the 
scope of audit, including the observations of the 

their submission to the Board and may also discuss 
any related issues with the internal and statutory 
auditors and the management of the company.

x. The Audit Committee shall have authority to 
investigate into any matter in relation to the items 

xi. The auditors of a Company and the key managerial 
personnel shall have a right to be heard in the 
meetings of the Audit Committee when it considers 
the auditor’s report but shall not have the right to 
vote.

xiii. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment and, if required, the replacement or 

audit fees.

xiv. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

xv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual 

board for approval, with particular reference to :

  a. Matters required to be included in the 
Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 
included in the Board’s report.

  b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same.

  c. Major accounting entries involving estimates 
based on the exercise of judgment by 
management.

 e.  Compliance with listing and other legal 

 f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

xvi. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 

board for approval.

xvii. Reviewing, with the management, performance 
of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy 
of the internal control systems.

xviii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board.

xxi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the 
audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern.

xxii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults 
in the payment to shareholders (in case of non 
payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

xxiii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism.

xxiv. Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing 

of the candidate.
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xxv. To review the Management discussion and 

operations;

submitted by management.

xxvii. To review Internal audit reports relating to internal 
control weaknesses;

xxviii. To review the appointment, removal and terms of 
remuneration of the internal auditor;

xxix. Carrying out any other function as mentioned in 
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

C.   Composition, names of Members and Chairman, its 

 The Audit Committee consists of Three Members, 
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar, Chairman and Mr. Sunil 
Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana as 
members of the Committee. During the year, four (4) 
Audit Committee meetings were held on 28th May, 
2018, 2nd August, 2018, 13th November, 2018 and 
24th January, 2019. The maximum time gap between 
any two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 
days during the year.

Names Category
Meetings held during Number of meetings 

attended
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Non Executive Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal Promoter, Executive Director 4 4
Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Non Executive Independent Director 4 3
Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey Non Executive Independent Director 4 4

of Statutory Auditors and representatives of the Internal Auditors. The Company Secretary of the Company continue to act 
as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, Board has accepted all the recommendations of Audit Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee is formed 
in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations.

A. Constitution
Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 
following members:

1.  Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar, Non Executive –
Independent Director

2.  Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana, Non Executive-
Independent Director

3.  Mrs. Nishal Jain, Non Executive–Independent 
Director

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar acts as a Chairman 
and Mr. Jogeswar Mohanty, Company Secretary of 
the Company continue to act the Secretary to the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

B.  Terms of reference
Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee include:

directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, recommend to the Board their appointment 
and removal and shall carry out evaluation of 
every director’s performance.

  To formulate the criteria for determining 

of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, 
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees.

non executive and executive Directors including 
any compensation payment.

  All elements of remuneration package of Director 

etc.

  Any other works and policy related and incidental 
to the objectives of the committee as per 
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.
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C. Meetings and attendance during the year

24th January, 2019.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and number of meetings attended by the Members 
during the year are given below:

Names Category
Meetings held during Number of meetings 

attended
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Non Executive Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Non Executive Independent Director 2 1
Mr. Radha Krishna Pandey Non Executive Independent Director 2 2

D.  Nomination & Remuneration policy
The Executive Directors of the Company are paid, 
as approved by the Board of Directors, on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee. The remuneration was decided considering 

expertise, remuneration prevailing in the industry, 

sitting fees only to its Non Executive Independent 
Directors for attending the meetings of the Board.

Non Executive Independent Directors do not hold 
any equity shares in the Company. There has been 
no pecuniary relationship or transactions other than 
above of the Non-Executive Independent Directors 
with the Company during the year under review.

E.  Board Performance evaluation 
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee has approved the process, 
attributes, criteria and format for the performance 
evaluation of the Board, Committees of the Board 
and Individual Directors including the Chairman and 
Managing Director. 

The process provides that the performance evaluation 
shall be carried out on an annual basis. During the 
year, the evaluation process was completed by the 
Company which included evaluation of the Board as 
a whole, Board Committees and individual Directors 
including the Chairman and Managing Director. 

Performance of the Board and Board Committees 
were evaluated on various parameters such as 
structure, composition, quality, diversity, experience, 

obligations, quality of decision-making and overall 
Board effectiveness.

Performance of individual Directors was evaluated 
on parameters such as attendance at the meetings, 
participation and contribution, responsibility towards 
stakeholders and independent judgment.

Performance of Chairman and Managing Director was 
evaluated on certain additional parameters such as 
performance of the Company, leadership, relationships 
and communications.

All directors participated in the evaluation survey and 
review was carried out through a peer-evaluation 
excluding the Director being evaluated. The result 
of evaluation was discussed in the Independent 
Director’s meeting, respective Committees meetings 
and in the Board Meeting. The Board members noted 
the suggestions / inputs of independent directors, 
HR, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and respective committee Chairman and also 
discussed various initiatives to further strengthen Board 
effectiveness.

3.3  Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholder’s Relationship is formed in 
accordance with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 
20 of the Listing Regulations.

A.  Composition, Members, its meetings and attendance

Four (4) times on 21st May, 2018, 2nd August, 2018, 
13th November, 2018 and 24th January, 2019.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee and number of meetings attended by the 
Members during the year are given below: 

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar, Non Executive Independent 
Director is heading the Committee as the Chairman.
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Name Category
Number of meetings 

attended
Mr. Saurabh Agarwal Executive Director 4
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Non Executive Independent Director 4
Mr. Ramesh Chand Surana Non Executive Independent Director 3

B.  Terms of reference
The Committee supervises the mechanism for 
redressal of investor grievances and ensures cordial 
investor relations, apart from looking into redressal of 
shareholders’ and investors’ complaints like transfer 
of shares, non-receipt of annual reports, non-receipt 
of dividend and allied matters and complaints received 
from the Stock Exchanges.

C.   Complaints received and redressed during the year 

Number of Shareholders Complaints received 
during the Financial Year 2018-19

8

Number of Shareholders Complaints solved to the 
satisfaction of shareholders during the Financial 
Year 2018-19 8

Number of Shareholders Complaints not solved 
to the satisfaction of shareholders during the 
Financial Year 2018-19 0

Number of Shareholders Complaints pending at 
the end of  Financial Year 2018-19 0

Name   :  Mr. Jogeswar Mohanty

Designation         :  Company Secretary and   

E.   Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (“IEPF”)
During the year under review, no amount was due to be 
transferred to IEPF. However unpaid dividend declared 
in the 2012 will be due to be transferred to IEPF in 
October, 2019. Due care is being taken to comply with 
the legal requirements relating to such matter.

3.4  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
CSR Committee was constituted on 29th May, 2014. 
The Company’s CSR Policy covers all permitted 
activities under Schedule VII to the Act. The Committee 
is entrusted with the task ascertaining the amount 
which the Company is supposed to spend CSR activities 
during a particular year in pursuance of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Further Committee monitors 
the progress of the designated projects and ensure that 
the funds allocated are appropriately utilized for the 
designated projects/ activities.

The CSR policy of the Company has been uploaded 
on the website of the Company and be accessed at 
https://www.kamdhenulimited.com/Financial-Results/
CSR-Policy.pdf.

A. Composition of CSR Committee
The committee comprises of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal 
as Chairman, Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal, Member and 
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar, Member.

B. Terms of Reference
  To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR 

Policy and the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as per Schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013;

  To recommend amount of expenditure on CSR 
activities;

 To monitor CSR Policy of the company.

During the year, 2 (Two) CSR Committee meetings 
were held on 28th May 2018 and 19th December, 2018 
and number of meetings attended by the Members 
during the year is given below:

Name Category
Number of meetings 

Held
Number of meetings 

Attended
Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Chairman 2 2
Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal Member 2 2
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar Member 2 2
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4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the shareholders of the Company are as follows:

For the year ended Location of AGM Date of AGM Time Details of Special Resolutions passed at AGM

31.03.2018 Hotel Mapple Emerald, 
NH-8, Rajokari, New 
Delhi-110038

24.09.2018 10.00 A.M 1.  Special Resolution to increase the 
remuneration payable to Shri Satish Kumar 
Agarwal with effect from 1st April, 2018 upto 
31st March, 2020.

2.  Special Resolution to increase the 
remuneration payable to Shri Sunil Kumar 
Agarwal with effect from 1st April, 2018 upto 
31st March, 2020

3.  To increase the remuneration payable to 
Shri Saurabh Agarwal with effect from 1st 
April, 2018 upto 31st March, 2020.

4.  To increase the remuneration payable to 
Shri Sachin Agarwal with effect from 1st 
April, 2018 upto 31st March, 2020. 

31.03.2017 Hotel Mapple Emerald, 
NH-8, Rajokari,  New 
Delhi-110038

29.09.2017 1:00 P.M NIL

31.03.2016 Khasra No. 841/1(2-8) 
& 847 (2-16), Behind 
Rajasthan Petrol 
Pump, Village Rajokari, 
VasantVihar, New 
Delhi-110038

27.09.2016 10.00 A.M 1.      Special Resolution for Re-appointment of  
Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal as Whole Time 
Director of the Company and approval of 
remuneration payable to him with effect 
from 1st April, 2017 upto 31st March, 2020.

2.     Special Resolution for  Re-appointment of  
Mr. Sunil Kumar Agarwal as Whole Time 
Director of the Company and approval of 
remuneration payable to him with effect from 
1st April, 2017 upto 31st March, 2020.

3.     Special Resolution for  Re-appointment 
of  Mr. Saurabh Agarwal as Whole Time 
Director of the Company and approval of 
remuneration payable to him with effect from 
1st April, 2017 upto 31st March, 2020. 

4.     Special Resolution for  Re-appointment 
of  Mr. Sachin Agarwal as Whole Time 
Director of the Company and approval of 
remuneration payable to him with effect from 
1st April, 2017 upto 31st March, 2020. 
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During the Financial Year 2018-19, one postal ballot 
proceeding has been conducted through which one (1) 
Special resolutions were passed.

Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director 
of the Company and Mr. Jogeswar Mohanty, Company 
Secretary of the Company are the persons responsible for 
the entire postal ballot process. Mr. Praveen Kumar Bharti, 
Advocate of M/s Rajeev Goel & Associates, Advocates 
& Solicitors, Delhi has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 
for conducting the postal ballot process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

The notice of postal ballot containing resolutions, 
explanatory statement, postal ballot forms, e-voting user 
IDs and passwords and a self addressed pre-paid business 
reply envelop (as applicable) were sent to the members and 
others concerned including statutory auditors, Directors, 
stock exchanges etc. through courier/email. The dispatch 
of notice of postal ballot along with postal ballot forms and 
business reply envelope (postage prepaid) was completed 
on Saturday, 24th day of November, 2018. 

The notice of postal ballot/e-voting was also placed on the 
website of the Company. The intimation about completion 

of dispatch of the postal ballot form/e-voting password 
along with instructions and last date for receipt of reply from 
shareholders was also intimated to the members by way of 
publication of advertisement in newspapers on Tuesday, 
27th day of November, 2018 in English Language in Financial 
Express (All India Editions) and in  Hindi Newspaper, Jansatta, 
( Delhi Edition).

Members were advised to carefully read the instructions before 
casting their votes and were also advised to vote through 
electronic mode on or before the closure of e-voting period on 
Tuesday, 25th day of December, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. and return 
the duly completed forms in the attached self-addressed pre-
paid envelop, so as to reach the Scrutinizer on or before the 
close of business hours on Tuesday, 25th day of December, 
2018. 

The Scrutinizer carried out the scrutiny of postal ballot 
forms  received physically and the votes polled electronically 
upto the close of the working hours on Tuesday, 25th day of 

his report on Thursday, 27th day of December, 2018.

On the basis of the report of the Scrutinizer, Mr. Satish 
Kumar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director of the 
Company, declared the results of the postal ballot/e-voting 
on  Thursday, 27th day of December, 2018 at 5:00 PM.

Voting Results

Physical voting Total
No. of 

holders

No. of 
Votes

No. of 
Share 

holders

No. of 
Votes

No. of 
Share 

holders

No. of 
Votes

Total Votes Cast 44 17365867 7 1396 51 17367263
Total Valid Votes 44 17365867 7 1396 51 17367263
Total Invalid Votes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Votes in favour of Resolution 44 17365867 7 1396 51 17367263
Total Votes against the Resolution 0 0 0 0 0 0

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing annual general meeting require passing a resolution 
through postal ballot.

4.2 Means of Communications

A Quarterly Results
Presently Quarterly Results of the Company is being submitted to Stock exchanges where the shares of the Company is 
listed  i.e  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) within prescribed time limit as per  Listing 
Regulations in every quarter after conclusion of board meeting wherein the results are approved. Thereafter the results 
are published in Newspaper as per Listing Regulations. Results are also uploaded on the website of the Company (www.
kamdhenulimited.com).
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B. Newspaper wherein results normally published

following newspapers.

Financial Express- National Daily (All India Editions)

Jansatta – Hindi Daily (Delhi Edition only)

C. Websites where results are displayed
www.nseindia.com

www.bseindia.com

www.kamdhenulimited.com

D.  Company is also giving the Press release on Financial 
results.

E.  Presentations are being made to investors or to the 
analysts as per the schedule as intimated to stock 

5. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A. 25th Annual General Meeting 

  Date and Time  : Monday, 30th September, 2019  
      at 10:00 P.M

 Venue   : Hotel  Pride Plaza, Aerocity,   
       New Delhi-110037

B. Financial Year

  Financial year of the Company starts on 1st April, and 
ends on 31st March, of the following year.

 Financial Calendar 2018-19:

Event On or before

Financial Results for the 1st Quarter ended 
30th June, 2019

14.08.2019

Financial Results for the 2nd Quarter ended 
30th September, 2019

14.11.2019

Financial Results for the 3rd Quarter ended 
31st December, 2019

14.02.2020

year ended 31st March, 2020
30.05.2020

C. Dividend

  Board of directors of the Company in their meeting 
held on 2nd May, 2019 has recommended a dividend 
of Re 1/-per equity share of face value of `10/- fully 
paid-up each subject to approval of the same in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th 
September, 2019. If the dividend is declared, shall be 
paid on or before 30th September, 2019.

 From 21st September, 2019  to 
30th September, 2019 (both days inclusive)

  The shares of the Company are listed on the BSE 
Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India 

year 2018-19 have been paid to these Stock Exchanges 
within due dates.

 National Stock Exchange of India Limited

 Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,

 Bandra(E), Mumbai-400 051  

 BSE Limited

 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

 Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001 

F. Stock Code/ Script Id

 BSE Limited      : 532741

 National Stock Exchange of India Limited : KAMDHENU

G. Stock Market Price data

  The monthly high and low quotations of shares traded 
on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited, during the period 
under review are as follows:

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTD.)



CORPORATE OVERVIEW 01-30 STATUTORY REPORTS 31-97 FINANCIAL SECTION 98-147

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 | 71

Month

BSE NSE
High Low Closing Volume High Low Closing Volume

(`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (No.)
Apr-18 265.45 225.00 241.20 80587 267.60 234.50 244.05 495087
May-18 264.95 227.10 232.00 52437 264.00 224.50 237.35 351643
Jun-18 253.60 192.30 213.15 54203 265.60 194.80 212.50 445185
Jul-18 235.00 194.00 227.85 33647 233.00 190.35 229.20 378760
Aug-18 235.00 207.00 215.00 51599 236.00 214.85 216.45 411319
Sep-18 226.45 180.00 184.30 34553 229.00 181.75 183.50 168851
Oct-18 187.10 160.50 171.90 21668 187.00 156.25 171.45 138639
Nov-18 193.90 164.00 171.60 30946 194.00 164.70 170.10 234159
Dec-18 184.00 161.00 170.00 97928 184.95 156.60 169.30 271953
Jan-19 184.90 155.05 162.65 80506 179.00 156.05 163.10 312663
Feb-19 166.00 142.05 159.00 83561 165.70 146.00 157.90 320690
Mar-19 181.80 161.50 165.90 86796 186.95 159.90 168.00 349535
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[Source: www.bseindia.com, www.nseindia.com ]

(Based on month ended closing price of Company on BSE and month ended BSE Sensex)
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H.  Securities of the Company has not been suspended 
from trading during the year under review.

I.  List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity 
along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 

proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of 
funds, whether in India or abroad. 

  Not Applicable as there is no debt instruments or 

of involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or 
abroad

J. Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents

  M/s Karvy Fintech Private Limited (Formerly Karvy 
Computershare Private Limited) is the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company in 
respect of shares held in physical and de-mat form. 
The Members are requested to correspond to the 
Company’s Registrars & Share Transfer Agent - 
M/s Karvy Fintech Private Limited (Formerly Karvy 
Computer share Private Limited) quoting their Folio 
Number, Client ID and DP ID at the following address:

 M/s Karvy Fintech Private Limited 
 (Formerly Karvy Computershare Private Limited)

  Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31 & 32, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda Serilingampally 
Mandal, Hyderabad – 500032, India

 P : +91 040 6716 1518,  M : +91 9866515032
 E-mail: mailmanager@karvy.com, suresh.d@karvy.com
 website: www.karvycomputershare.com

  Mr. Jogeswar Mohanty (Company Secretary &  

 

 2nd Floor, Tower-A, Building No. 9, 
 DLF Cyber City, Phase-III, 
 Gurgaon - 122 002 (Haryana),

 Telephone: 0124-4604534
 Fax: 0124-4218524
 Email: kamdhenu@kamdhenulimited.com
               jmohanty@kamdhenulimited.com
 Website : www.kamdhenulimited.com

 

 L-311, Khasra No. 724, Street No. 7,
 Mahipalpur Extention, 
 New Delhi-110037

 Telephone: 011 - 26784596
 Fax: 011 - 26784596

L. Share Transfer System

  The Company has a Share Transfer Committee, a sub-
committee of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
to look into various issues relating to the investors 
including share transfers/transmissions, duplicate 

Share Transfer Committee of the Board of Directors of 
the Company meets as and when requests received 
from the Registrar and Share Tansfer Agent (RTA) 
to give effect to the share transfers/transmissions, 

  M/s Karvy Fintech Private Limited, RTA process the 
share transfers / transmission, splitting, consolidation 

approved by the Share Transfer Committee. Transfer of 
shares in physical form are registered and dispatched 
within 1 month of their receipt, subject to documents 
being valid and complete in all respects. The Board 
is regularly updated on the matters transacted at the 
Share Transfer Committee meetings.
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Category (Shares) No. of Cases Percentage  to cases No of Shares
Percentage to  

Shares
  1-5000 8754 88.15 1157415 4.74

  5001-  10000 613 6.17 498243 2.04
 10001-  20000 274 2.76 427381 1.75
 20001-  30000 93 0.94 234391 0.96
 30001-  40000 35 0.35 122768 0.50
 40001-  50000 27 0.27 126576 0.52
 50001- 100000 42 0.42 308746 1.27
100001&  Above 93 0.94 21524480 88.22

Total 100.00 24400000 100.00

I. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

CATE-
GORY 
CODE

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE BEGINNING OF 
THE YEAR 31/03/2018

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE END OF THE 
YEAR 31/03/2019 % CHANGE 

DURING 
THE YEARCATEGORY OF SHAREHOLD-

ER DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 
SHARES DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 

SHARES

   (I)      (II)      (III)      (IV)      (V)      (VI)      (VII)      (VIII)      (IX)   (X)   (XI)

(A) PROMOTER AND 
PROMOTER GROUP

(1) INDIAN

(a) Individual /HUF 8486742 0 8486742 36.27 8486742 1000000 9486742 35.93 -0.33

(b) Central Government/State 
Government(s)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(c) Bodies Corporate 7804145 0 7804145 33.35 7804145 0 7804145 29.56 -3.79

(d) Financial Institutions / 
Banks

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 1000000 65.50

(2) FOREIGN

(a) Individuals (NRIs/Foreign 
Individuals)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(b) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(c) Institutions  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(d) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Others  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total A=A(1)+A(2) 0 1000000 65.50

(B) PUBLIC  SHAREHOLDING

(1) INSTITUTIONS

(a) Mutual Funds /UTI  194087 0 194087 0.83 293160 0 293160 1.11 0.28

(b) Financial Institutions /
Banks

20635 0 20635 0.09 35992 0 35992 0.14 0.05
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CATE-
GORY 
CODE

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE BEGINNING OF 
THE YEAR 31/03/2018

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE END OF THE 
YEAR 31/03/2019 % CHANGE 

DURING 
THE YEARCATEGORY OF SHAREHOLD-

ER DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 
SHARES DEMAT PHYSICAL TOTAL % OF TOTAL 

SHARES

(c) Central Government / 
State Government(s)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(d) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(e) Insurance Companies  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(f) Foreign Institutional 
Investors 

8575 0 8575 0.04 0 0 0 0.00 -0.04

(g) Foreign Venture Capital 
Investors 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(h) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

(i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 1.25

(2)

(a) Bodies Corporate 1152436 0 1152436 4.92 2167026 700000 2867026 10.86 5.94

(b) Individuals

(i) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital upto 
`1 lakh 2652680 7141 2659821 11.37 2541087 7025 2548112 9.65 -1.71

(ii) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of `1 lakh 2910340 0 2910340 12.44 2926374 300000 3226374 12.22 -0.22

(c) Others

CLEARING MEMBERS                                  36123 0 36123 0.15 8541 0 8541 0.03 -0.12

NBFC                                              24098 0 24098 0.10 15995 0 15995 0.06 -0.04

NON RESIDENT INDIANS                              82332 0 82332 0.35 90662 0 90662 0.34 -0.01

NRI  NON-REPATRIATION                             20666 0 20666 0.09 23251 0 23251 0.09 0.00

(d) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

6885816 33.26 3.83

30.38 8102088 34.50 4.12

23400000 100.00 26400000 100.00 0.00

(C) SHARES HELD BY 
CUSTODIANS, AGAINST 
WHICH DEPOSITORY 
RECEIPTS HAVE BEEN 
ISSUED

(1) PROMOTER AND 
PROMOTER GROUP 0  0  0  0.00  0 0  0  0.00 0.00 

(2) PUBLIC 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

23400000 100.00 26400000 100.00 0.00 
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Sr. 
No Name of the Share Holder

No of Shares 
held as on 

31/03/2018

Change 
in Share 
holding 

No of Shares 
Held As on 

31/03/2019

% Change in 
Shareholding Reason for change

Pledge 
Shares as on 
31/03/2018

Pledge 
Shares as on 
31/03/2019

1 KAMDHENU OVERSEAS 
LIMITED                                                       3050000 0 3050000 -1.48  0 0

2 KAMDHENU PAINT 
INDUSTRIES LIMITED                                               1521801 0 1521801 -0.74  0 0

3 KAMDHENU CONCAST 
LIMITED                                                        1428510 0 1428510 -0.69  0 0

4 SARITA AGARWAL                                                                  1354450 250000 1604450 0.29 Preferential allotment 0 0

5 SUNIL KUMAR 
AGARWAL                                                             1295292 250000 1545292 0.32 Preferential allotment 0 0

6 SATISH KUMAR 
AGARWAL                                                            1281842 0 1281842 -0.62  0 0

7 SHAFALI AGRAWAL                                                                 763842 0 763842 -0.37  0 0
8 SACHIN AGARWAL                                                                  673719 250000 923719 0.62 Preferential allotment 0 0

9
KAMDHENU 
INFRADEVELOPERS 
LIMITED                                                

614900 0 614900 -0.30  0 0

10 KAMDHENU NUTRIENTS 
PRIVATE LIMITED                                              600000 0 600000 -0.29  0 0

11 KAY2 STEEL LIMITED                                                              588934 0 588934 -0.29  0 0
12 SAURABH AGARWAL                                                                 576500 250000 826500 0.67 Preferential allotment 0 0
13 RADHA AGARWAL                                                                   541877 0 541877 -0.26  0 0

14 SATISH KUMAR 
AGARWAL  (HUF)                                                    365900 0 365900 -0.18  0 0

15 SHATUL AGARWAL                                                                  337700 0 337700 -0.16  0 0
16 SUNIL KUMAR (HUF) 300280 0 300280 -0.15  0 0
17 SHIVANI AGARWAL                                                                 255235 0 255235 -0.12  0 0
18 PRIYANKA AGARWAL                                                                244129 0 244129 -0.12  0 0
19 ISHITA AGARWAL                                                                  210716 0 210716 -0.10  0 0
20 SOMYA AGARWAL                                                                   144660 0 144660 -0.07  0 0
21 AYUSH AGARWAL                                                                   90600 0 90600 -0.04  0 0
22 AYUSH AGARWAL (HUF) 50000 0 50000 -0.02  0 0

1000000  0 0

(please specify, if there is no change):

Sr.  
No

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company 

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company 

At the beginning of the year 16290887 69.62 69.62
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc):

10,00,000

(Preferential 
allotment) NA 17290887 65.50

At the End of the year   17290887 65.50
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(Other than Directors,Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. 
No Type

Name of the Share 
Holder

Shareholding at the be-
ginning of the Year

Date

Increase/
Decrease in 
share hold-

ing Reason

Cumulative Share-
holding during the 

Year 

No of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company
No of 

Shares

% of total 
shares of 
the Com-

pany

1 Opening Balance MONEYPLUS 
FINANCIAL 

SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED                               

4241 0.02 31/03/2018   4241 0.02

 Purchase    05/10/2018 100000 Transfer 104241 0.43

 Purchase    26/10/2018 500000 Transfer 604241 2.48

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   804241 3.05

2 Opening Balance JATALIA FINANCE 
COMPANY LIMITED                                            

0 0.00 31/03/2018   0 0.00

 Purchase    06/07/2018 116 Transfer 116 0.00

 Purchase    05/10/2018 186 Transfer 302 0.00

 Purchase    26/10/2018 500000 Transfer 500302 2.05

 Purchase    22/02/2019 82873 Transfer 583175 2.39

 Purchase    01/03/2019 24627 Transfer 607802 2.49

 Sale    15/03/2019 -86 Transfer 607716 2.49

 Sale    22/03/2019 -65 Transfer 607651 2.49

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   607651 2.30

3 Opening Balance
MUKUL 

MAHAVIRPRASAD 
AGRAWAL                                                

516831 2.21 31/03/2018   516831 2.21

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   516831 1.96

4 Opening Balance INDO JATALIA 
HOLDINGS LIMITED                                              

50 0.00 31/03/2018   50 0.00

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   500050 1.89

5 Opening Balance ASHA MUKUL 
AGRAWAL                                                         

471736 2.02 31/03/2018   471736 2.02

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   471736 1.79

6 Opening Balance NIRDOSH GAUR .                                                             0 0.00 31/03/2018   0 0.00

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   300000 1.14

7 Opening Balance SANGEETHA S                                                                296890 1.27 31/03/2018   296890 1.27

 Sale    22/06/2018 -990 Transfer 295900 1.26

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   295900 1.12

8 Opening Balance THREE DEE EXIM 
PRIVATE LIMITED                                             

234500 1.00
31/03/2018   234500 1.00

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   234500 0.89

9 Opening Balance INDIAN SECURITIES 
LIMITED                                                  

227852 0.97 31/03/2018   227852 0.97

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   227852 0.86

10 Opening Balance PRADEEP KUMAR 
GARG                                                         221859 0.95 31/03/2018   221859 0.95

 Closing Balance    31/03/2019   221859 0.84
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Sr. 
No

Shareholding of each  
Directors and each 
Key  
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Date

Increase/
Decrease in 
share hold-

ing

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

No. of shares
% of total 

Shares of the  
company

No. of shares
% of total 

Shares of the  
company

1 Satish Kumar Agarwal, 
Chairman & Managing 
Director

1281842 5.48 01.04.18 0 NA 1281842 5.48

Closing Balance 31.03.19 1281842 4.85

2 Sunil Kumar Agarwal, 
Wholetime Director

1295292 5.54 01.04.18 0 NA 1295292 5.54

250000 Preferential 
allotment

1545292 5.85

Closing Balance 31.03.19 1545292 5.85

3 Saurabh Agarwal, 
Wholetime Director

576500 2.46 01.04.18 0 NA 576500 2.46

250000 Preferential 
allotment

826500 3.13

Closing Balance 31.03.19 826500 3.13

4 Sachin Agarwal, 
Wholetime Director

673719 2.88 01.04.18 0 NA 673719 2.88

250000 Preferential 
allotment

923719 3.50

Closing Balance 31.03.19 923719 3.50

5 Mahendra Kumar 
Doogar, Independent 
Director

0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

6
Ramesh Chand 
Surana, Independent 
Director

0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

7 Nishal Jain, 
Independent Director

0 0 01.04.18
0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

8 Harish Kumar Agarwal, 0 0 01.04.18 0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0

9 Jogeswar Mohanty, 
Company Secretary

0 0 01.04.18
0 NA 0 0

Closing Balance 31.03.19 0 0
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O. Dematerialisation of Shares & liquidity

 Equity shares of your company are in compulsory demat 
settlement mode and can be traded only in demat form. 
Except 7143 equity shares out of total issued capital of 
the Company, all the shares of the Company are in de-
mat form. 

allotted to the Company by NSDL and CDSL is 
INE390H01012.

P. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Options/FCCBs

 There is no outstanding security as on 31st March, 
2019.

hedging activities. N.A

R. Plant locations

 Steel Division

 A-1112 & A-1114, RIICO Industrial Area, Phase-III, 
Bhiwadi, District Alwar-310109, Rajasthan

 Phone: 01493-520401-430 Fax:01493-520428

 Paint Division

 E-538-539 A, Industrial Area, Chopanki, Distt. Alwar, 
Rajasthan, 

 Phone: 01493-306801-820 Fax:01493-306810

S. Address for Correspondence

  2nd Floor, Tower A, Building No. 9, 
DLF Cyber City, Phase-III, Gurugram-122002 (Haryana) 
Phone:0124-4604500 (30 Lines)  
Fax: 0124-4218524, 

 Email: kamdhenu@kamdhenulimited.com

T. Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend

 Members, who have not received / encashed their 

16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 may approach the Registrar & 
Share transfer  Agent and or the Company for payment 
of such unpaid dividend.

U. Nomination facility

 In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
shareholders holding shares in demat and physical 
form may in their own interest register their nomination 
with the DP and R&T Agent, respectively.

6. DISCLOSURES
A. Related Party Transaction

 The Company has not entered into any materially 

Promoters, Directors or the Management, their relatives 
that may have potential conflicts with the interest of the 
company at large. Transactions with related parties as 
per AS-18 have been disclosed in the note 40 forming 
part of Financial Statements. In terms of Listing 
Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy 
on materiality on related party transaction and also 
on dealing with the related party transactions which 
is disclosed on the company’s website https://www.
kamdhenulimited.com/Financial-Results/Related-
Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf

B. Details of Non Compliance, if any 

 The Compliance status of all applicable law is reviewed 
by the Board on quarterly basis. In the opinion of your 
Directors, there has been no non-compliance by the 
Company,  no penalties or strictures imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory 
authority, on any matter relating to the capital markets 
during the last three years more-so in terms of Para 
C(10)(b) and Para C(13) of Schedule V to the Listing 
Regulations.

C. Compliance of Corporate Governance

 The Company has fully complied with the Mandatory 
Requirements of Listing Regulations. The Company 
has so far not implemented any non-mandatory 

of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations.

D. Vigil mechanism/ Whistle blower policy

 Your Company has established a mechanism called 
‘Vigil Mechanism’ for directors and employees to report 
to the appropriate authorities of unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct or ethics policy and provides 
safeguards against victimization of employees who 
avail the mechanism. The policy permits all the directors 
and employees to report their concerns directly to the 
Ethics Counselor/Chairman of the Audit Committee of 
the Company. The policy with the name and address 
of the Chairman of the Audit Committee has been 
communicated to the employees by uploading the same 
on the website of the Company. The employees can 
directly contact the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
The details of establishment of above vigil mechanism 
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forms part of Directors Report. The vigil mechanism is 
uploaded on the website of the Company and can be 
accessed at www.kamdhenulimited.com. During the 
year under review, neither any case was reported under 
the Vigil Mechanism Policy nor was anyone denied the 
access to the Ethics Counselor/Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Company.

E. Material Subsidiaries

 The Company has no Material Subsidiaries.

F. Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging

 The Company is not dealing in Commodity trading and 
hedging.

G. Accounting Treatment/ Accounting Polices

prepared in accordance with the IndAS to comply with 

have been prepared on accrual basis. The accounting 

statements are consistent with those followed in the 
previous year.

H.  Proceeds from public issues, right issues, preferential 
issues etc.

 The Company has allotted 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs 
only) Equity Shares to the warrant holders to promoters 
and others on preferential/ private placement basis. The 
Company has received a sum of `1,500 Lakhs from the 
issue during the year under review. The proceeds of the 
preferential issue during the period under review has 
been used by the Company to augment the business 
operations, expansion and meet the working capital 
requirements, and general corporate purpose.

none of the directors on the board of the Company have 

continuing as directors of companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority.

has been obtained certifying that none of the directors 
on the board of the Company have been debarred 

as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

J.    Any recommendation of any committee of the board 
not accepted by the board which is mandatorily 

 There is no recommendation of any committee of the 
board which has not accepted by the board of directors 
which is mandatorily required to be accepted during in 

K.    Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity 
and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 

network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

 Payment To Auditors

Particulars
Statutory audit fee 4.65
Taxation matters 0.60
Total 5.25

 
entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

 NIL

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

 The Company has complied with the provision relating 
to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. During the FY 2018-19, the Company received 
one complaint on sexual harassment under The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and is under 
inquiry and investigation i.e pending for resolution. 
Regarding this a detailed information has been given in 
Directors’ Report.

year :   0

year :   1

M. Secretarial Audit Report

 The Annual Secretarial Audit Report from the Company 
Secretary in practice for compliance with Section 
204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations, 
SEBI Regulations on Takeover, Insider Trading and 
Depositories & Participants is annexed as Annexure IV 
as part of the Annual Report.

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTD.)
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N. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report have 
been included separately as Annexure VI to  the Annual 
Report.

O. Shareholders

 i.  The quarterly results and Shareholding Patterns 
have been put on the Company’s website www.
kamdhenulimited.com under the investor zone 
Section.

 ii.  The Company will send Annual Report through 
email to those Shareholders who have registered 
their email ids with Depositary Participant and 
physical Annual Report will be sent by post to 
other shareholders.

with Part B of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations,  duly 
signed by the Chairman & Managing Director and Chief 

for the year under review was  placed before the Board 
and forms part of the Annual report as annexure.

8. COMPLIANCE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 The quarterly compliance report has been submitted 

to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s equity 
shares are listed in the requisite format duly signed by 

Practicing Company Secretary on in compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance forms part of the 
Annual Report.

 As per the requirement of the Listing Regulations, 
Company has formulated Code of Conduct for the Board 
members and senior management personnel of the 
Company so that the Company’s business is conducted 

any conflict of personal interests with the interests of the 
Company. All Board members and senior management 

Conduct.

 Declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director

 It is hereby declared that the Company has obtained 
from each individual member of the Board and the 

violated the conditions of the said Code of Conduct. 
Code of conduct declaration annexed as annexure to 
this Report.

10.  DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE 
ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

 There are no shares in the Demat suspense account or 
unclaimed suspense account. Hence the disclosures 
required to be made in Annual Report 2018-19 as 
per clause (F) (1) (a) to (e) of Schedule V of Listing 
Regulations are not applicable.

11.  DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS UNDER 

 The Company has not disclosed and adopted the 

Schedule II under Listing Regulations.

12.  COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY 

(2) OF REGULATION 46 OF THE LISTING 
REGULATIONS

 The Board of Directors periodically review the 
compliance of all applicable laws. The Company has 
complied with all the mandatory requirements of the 
Code of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the 
Listing Regulations.

DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3) 
AND SCHEDULE V PARA C CLAUSE (10)(I) OF THE 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 

appointed or continuing as directors of companies by 
the Board/Ministry of Corporate affairs or any such 
statutory Authority forms integral part of this Report.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Sunil Kumar Agarwal)
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00005981 DIN: 00005973 
Date :  2nd May, 2019 
Place : Gurgaon 
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ANNEXURE TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors

KAMDHENU LIMITED
Second Floor, Building No.9A,
DLF Cyber City, Phase-III, Gurugram-122002

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations)

Dear Sirs/ Madam,

This is to certify that pursuant to the Para D of Schedule V and other applicable regulations of the Listing Regulations, the Board 

FOR KAMDHENU LIMITED 
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CERTIFICATE

Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief hereby certify that:

to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 (i)     these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading and;

 (ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b)    There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(d)     We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTD.)

(Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Harish Kumar Agarwal)

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00005981 

Date :  2nd May, 2019 

Place : Gurgaon 
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
UNDER LISTING REGULATIONS, 2015

KAMDHENU LIMITED
L-311, Khasra No.724
Street No.7, Mahipalpur Extention
New Delhi-110037

We have examined all relevant records of Kamdhenu Limited (the Company) for the purpose of certifying all the conditions of the 

ended 31st March 2019. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 

On the basis of our examination of the records produced explanations and information furnished, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTD.)

For Chandrasekaran Associates

Company Secretaries

(Shashikant Tiwari)

Partner

(Membership No. ACS 28994, CP 13050)

Date :  2nd May, 2019 

Place : Gurgaon 
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CERTIFICATE UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND  
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Members, 
KAMDHENU LIMITED 
L-311, Khasra No.724 Street No.7, 
Mahipalpur Extention
New Delhi 110037

Based on the disclosures/declarations received from Directors appointed on the Board of KAMDHENU LIMITED (“Company”) as 
on 31st March, 2019, we hereby certify that as on 31st March, 2019, none of the Directors on the Board of Company have been 

India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTD.)

For Chandrasekaran Associates

Company Secretaries

(Shashikant Tiwari)

Partner

Membership No. A28994

Date :  2nd May, 2019 

Place : Gurgaon 



GST Collection in FY 2018-19:

As per the International Monetary Fund (IMF) April 2019, the 
global economy registered a growth of 3.6% in 2018, further 
the global growth forecasted for 2019 and 2020 is at 3.3% 
and 3.6% respectively for both the years. The growth rate for 
emerging market and developing economies rose by 4.5% 
in 2018 while it is forecasted to tick down to 4.4% in 2019, 
before improving to 4.8% in 2020.

This growth forecast primarily reflects stronger than 
expected activity in emerging economies for 2019 and 2020. 
The growth in advanced economies is projected to slowly 
decline towards potential growth rates of about 1.70% in 
2020. This hiccup was triggered by numerous political 
uncertainties, negotiation on the forthcoming Brexit, and 
rising debt. Meanwhile, further pickup in global activity 
is entirely backed by emerging markets and developing 
economies. In these countries, growth is projected to rise to 
4.8% in 2020. Their growth could be measured by their rising 
world economic weight and the impact they are making can 
be felt all across the world. The burgeoning industrialization 
and fast track growth in urbanization can vouch for that. 
Out of all emerging economies: India, China, and Nigeria 
– together are expected to account for 35% of the growth 
in the world’s urban population between 2018 and 2050. 
India is projected to host 416 Million urban dwellers, China 
255 Million and Nigeria 189 Million. The growth in urban 
population would provide a tailwind for the growing needs 
for the infrastructure, health, education, decent work and 
safe environment place.  And when the time comes, this 
progress would be amply backed by investment, growing 
income, and credit growth.

(Source: IMF, World urbanization prospect)

India has witnessed a GDP growth rate of 7.1% in the FY 
2018-19 as compared to 6.7% over the previous year. This 
surge could be attributed to an upswing in investment and 
consumption. The investment is powered by ‘Indian policy 
framework.’ The method marks the inclusion of the idea 
of decentralising states in decision-making and positing 
them against each other for natural resources available 
which are attracting funds. Rapid urbanization is fuelling 
consumption and ushering in latest technologies and by 
transforming demographics. Reforms, taken in the last 
few years, had been essential in maintaining the pace 
of the growth. It backed India’s emergence as one of the 
fastest growing economies in the world. This reform was 
further cushioned by increasing credit offtake, settled GST 
implementation, growing demand and capacity expansion. 
Latest infrastructures pitted 20+ smart cities against 
each other with all aiming high. In the process, they are 
seeking support in innovation. At the same time, this year 

budget placed emphasis on the upliftment of agriculture, 
health care infrastructure creation and improving education 
among many. All these factors would lead to an increase in 
employment, urbanization and a better standard of living. 

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) came into effect across 
India from 1st July, 2017. Due to this, a reduction can be 
seen in the local production cost. It is also expected to 
transform unorganised businesses into organised ones. 
Along with that, ease in tax compliance and production 

(Source: https://www.businesstoday.in/current/economy-politics/gst-collections-for-march-scales-record-high-of-rs-106-
lakh-crore-gst-collections-for-march-scales-record-high-of-rs-rs-106-lakh-crore/story/332928.html)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

(` Lakh Crores)

1.03 
0.94,016 

0.95,610 0.96,483 0.93,960 0.94,442 
1.00,710 0.97,637 0.94,725 1.02 0.97,247 1.06 
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During the FY 2018-19, the monthly average of GST revenue stood at `
year. The growth occurred on account of reconciliations by businesses of outward and inward supplies, intelligent data analytics, 
related tax leakage detection and consequent GST payment by businesses.

Building infrastructure and improving logistics are at the core of actions taken by the Indian Government. The Government 
has infused `
programme would include 24,800 km of extensive highways. The National Highways Authority of India and the Ministry of Road 
Transport and Highways would develop another 10,000 km.

The Sagarmala Programme has its focus on connectivity by sea. The target is to modernise existing ports. They will heighten the water 
transportation ratio, which is economical in nature and will ensure the enhancement of the logistics and GDP of the country.  

# ` # `

1 Completed 93 14,997 76 9,802

2 Under Implementation 161 2,37, 980 101 67,175

3 Under Development 268 1,79, 517 128 86,479

(Source: www.Sagarmala.gov.in website)

Vietnam 39 3.27

India 44 3.18

Indonesia 46 3.15

Cote d’Ivoire 50 3.08

Phillippines 60 2.90

Ukraine 66 2.83

Egypt, Arab Rep 67 2.82

Kenya 68 2.81

Lao PDR 82 2.70

Jordan 84 2.69

(Source: World Bank)
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 Indian economy is forecasted to grow at 7.3% next 
year, Due to lower crude oil price, normal rain and 
stable political situation

from softer interest rates and farm realization

 Continuous improvization in capacity utilization and 
the end of the de-leveraging phase for corporates 
make conditions suitable for a renewal of private 

stable political outcome

Steel gives a solid foundation to countries. It is the marker 
of development in any nation. In 2018, global steel demand 
increased by 2.1% as compared to previous year. The 
growth in developed countries was slow, while in developing 
countries, the year ended up on a positive note.

The huge domestic market enables the steel industry in 
contributing around 2% to the Indian GDP. The industry is 
expanding. The modernization of the existing plant and 

the implementation of the state-of-the-art technology 

expansion. It has succeeded in edging past Japan and 
became the second largest steel producing nation. Ever-
surging demand for steel can be given credit for this stellar 
rise. The demand in developed nations has slackened 
over time, whereas, it is accelerating in the developing 

consumption grew at a CAGR of 5.69% between FY2008 
-18. The growth was backed by cost-effective labour, state-
of-the-art production steel mills and easy availability of 
raw material. Increasing liquidity in the hands of the rural 
consumers, as well as the middle-income earning group, is 
likely to have a positive effect on the demand for steel. The 
per capita consumption is around 68 kg in India, compared to 
the world’s average of 208 kg. This has bolstered initiatives 
taken by the Government to take the steel industry forward. 
In the process, India is emerging as one of the most alluring 
business destinations for steel.

(Source: Make in India, Steel Guru, IBEF)

80.4 89.3 91.7 92.7 101.9 109.1 117.1 119.2 122.2 122.2

75.5 83.9 86.2 87.1 95.8 102.6 110.1 112.1 114.9 114.9

Production 68.6 75.7 81.7 85.0 90.7 90.4 101.8 105.0 111.3 119.1

Less: Double counting 4.0 6.4 11.1 10.3 15.9 16.5 15.3 12.5 13.2 14.1

64.6 69.3 70.6 74.8 74.8 73.9 86.5 92.5 98.1 104.9

Add: Imports 7.1 6.9 7.9 5.4 9.3 11.7 7.2 7.5 7.0 7.0

Less: Exports 3.5 4.6 5.3 5.6 5.5 4.1 8.2 9.6 7.0 6.0

Assumed consumption 68.3 71.6 73.2 74.6 78.6 81.5 85.5 90.4 98.1 105.9

Stock change 1.9 0.6 (0.3) 0.7 1.6 1.1 1.4 (0.2) - -

Consumption 66.4 71.0 73.5 73.9 77.0 80.4 84.0 90.6 98.1 105.9

85.5 82.6 81.9 85.8 78.1 72.1 78.6 82.6 85.4 91.3

Growth (%)

Production 12.5 7.3 1.8 6.0 0.0 (1.2) 17.0 7.0 6.0 7.0

Consumption 11.9 7.0 3.4 0.6 4.2 4.5 4.5 7.8 8.2 8.0

(Source: Ministry of Steel)

( )

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 01-30 STATUTORY REPORTS 31-97 FINANCIAL SECTION 98-147

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 | 87



(Source: Alpha Invesco Report)

Raw materials play a pivotal role in giving strength to any 
infrastructure. The surge in the better quality raw material 
is further heightened by the need to enhance the quality 
of the concrete. Long steel enjoys the maximum demand, 
which includes wire rod sheet piles, blooms and rebars for 
construction, mechanical engineering and power. Flat steel 

automotive, capital good and consumer goods.

price is estimated to register a growth of 12.4% and 10%, 
respectively in 2018-19. The higher rate of investment 

expenditure made this possible. This has ultimately led to 
higher steel consumption in the country.

The growth has been arising on account of acceleration in 
housing and construction where major chunk of the steel 
is consumed. It is getting a boost through rising per capita 
income and Government schemes like Pradhan Mantri 
Awas Yojna-Housing for All, Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak 
Yojna, Bharatmala project.

( )

Steel demand Steel contribution to different sector

 
Longs 52% I Alloy 8% I HRC 18% I CRC 5% I GP/GC 
sheets 7% I Plates 6% I Other Flats 4%

 
Construction & infra 62% I Automotive 13% 
Engineering & fabrication 22% I  Others 3%
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1. 100% FDI in the steel sector

2. National steel policy 2017: 

   To ensure the high-quality steel production, 
create a technologically advanced and globally 
competitive steel industry

   To ensure domestic availability of iron ore, 
cooking coal, natural gas and other raw material 
at a competitive price

 Key Highlights:

   The policy envisions the completion of crude 
steel capacity of 300 Million tonnes (MT), 
production of 255 Million tonnes (MT) and a 

158 kg by 2030-31

   Export 24 Million tonnes steel (10% of 
production) by 2030

  Reduce dependency on imports to nil

  Emphasis on BF/BOF technology

3.  Ministry of Steel took the onus of improving the 
quality of steel and steel products and also, ensuring 
better health & safety standards for end-users

Over-production of steel: Over the last decade, China 
has doubled its production, accounting for over 50% 
of the world steel.  Its crude steel output in 2018 
jumped from 831.73 Million tonnes in 2017 to an 
estimated annual record of 923 Million tonnes. As a 
result, the excess inventory is sold to other countries 

  Lower per capita consumption: The per capita steel 
consumption in the country grew from 56 kg to 68 

kg over the last decade with a growth rate of 7%. 
However, that is much less than the one-third of the 
world average of around 208 kg

 Environmental and sustainable development: 
According to the projection by the Global Carbon 
Project, India is, reportedly, the fourth highest carbon 
dioxide contributor in the world, accounting for 7% 
of global emissions in 2017. It’s high time for the 
steel industry to mitigate pollution and adopt energy-

  Infrastructure development: The infrastructure, 
railways, construction, auto, earthmoving equipment 
and energy sectors are expected to generate decent 
demand for steel, while the defence is also an 
emerging major demand driver. With strong growth in 
highway development with continuous Government 
initiatives, will help create great opportunities for the 
steel industry to bag big orders

         Growth rate of CO2 emissions in 2018

India

5%

4

3

2

1

0

-1

-2
EUUSChina

(Source: IEA)

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 01-30 STATUTORY REPORTS 31-97 FINANCIAL SECTION 98-147

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 | 89



( )

Worls steel association has forecasted that global steel demand will reach 1,735 Mt in 2019, growing by 1.3% over 2018. In 
emerging countries, excluding China demand will grow by 2.9% and 4.6% respectively in 2018 and 2019 (Source: World steel 
association).

The demand in India for steel is expected to accelerate above 7% in both, 2019 and 2020. Going forward, this will make India the 
world’s second-largest steel consumer in 2019 surpassing U.S. Setting a target to increase its crude steel capacity to 300 Million 
tonnes by 2030-31 from about 134 Million tonnes at present. To increase the new capacity, the Indian steel industry is expected 
to invest US$ 128 Billion in the next 10-12 years (Source: Business Standard).

(Source: World steel association)

EU-28

2019 2020
170.2 MT 172.2 MT

+0.3% +1.2%

Other Europe

2019 2020
36.9 MT 39.3 MT

-3.9% +6.5%

CIS

2019 2020
57.0 MT 57.9 MT
+1.4% +1.7%

Middle East

2019 2020
48.9 MT 49.5 MT

-2.6% +1.2%
Asia & Oceania

2019 2020
1,194.6 MT 1,199.6 MT

+1.7% +0.4%

World

2019 2020
1,735.0 MT 1,751.6 MT

+1.3% +1.0%

Africa

2019 2020
38.1 MT 39.2 MT
+3.0% +3.0%

Central & South America

2019 2020
44.9 MT 48.3 MT
+3.6% +7.5%

NAFTA

2019 2020
144.5 MT 145.6 MT

+1.1% +0.8%
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The paint sector is highly raw material intensive, with over 300 inputs. The manufacturing process of paint requires resins, 
pigments, solvents, and additives. Key raw materials used in the manufacture of paints are titanium dioxide and petrol-based 
chemicals.

( )

Decorative paints have a wide range of application in home painting, architectural and other displays. Its margins are higher than 

sector in this segment. 

The paint industry structure
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Brent Crude Oil price

Apr
2018

75.17

May
2018

77.59

Jun
2018

79.44

Jul
2018

74.25

Aug
2018

77.42

Sep
2018

82.72

Oct
2018

75.47

Nov
2018

58.17

Dec
2018

53.80

Jan
2019

61.89

Feb
2019

66.03

Mar
2019

68.39

(Source : Investing.com)

Price at the end of the month

A forecast of 12% CAGR between FY 2018 to 2022 is on the cards owing to the urbanization, increase in investment and 
introduction of the innovative product. For a short span of time, during the implementation of GST and demonetization, the 
industry felt the impact of de-stocking of raw material. However, the GST rate was cut down to 18% from 28% in July, 2018 
accelerating the sales and favouring industry to grow at a  rate of 10-15 % annually.

valued at US$ 7 Billion owing to the usage of modern technologies, the Indian paint industry is witnessing a growth in the launch 
of innovative products, aggressive marketing, branding strategies, wide-ranging product portfolios and value-added services 
offered by companies. 

92 | KAMDHENU LIMITED



( )

  Urbanization: Rise in per capita income is helping 
in the emergence of more property-owners than 
rented-dwellers. People prefer a holistic approach 
in design for the owned homes to cover both interior 
and exterior. This change in behavioural attitude is 
spurring investment on premium paints as people 

  Media advertisement and promotion: Advertisement 
and promotion are aimed at making customer aware 
about the good quality paint. They prefer branded 
paint from organised players over paints from local 
unorganised players.

   Rising number of banks and 
NBFCs are simplifying the process of loan and its 
availability at a low-interest rate. This is triggering the 

  Rising education level: Increase in the education 
level of the general populace ushers in brand 
consciousness. This gives rise to the sale of eco-
friendly product regardless of the price. As a result, 

  Expansion into rural area: The implementation and 
reduction in GST have helped organised paint players 
to increase their volume. This is bound to help in 
reaching out to unorganised paint players, mostly 
dominating in rural areas.

  Increase thrust on distribution network: Increasing 

logistics management and reduce working capital 
cycle days.

Going forward, there will be an increase in the usage of the domestic paint industry. In India, per capita consumption is 3.75 kg 
as compared to global average of 12-15 kg. This mirrors the abundance in the scope of growth. Since 30% of the market still 

coupled with increased pay hike of 7th pay commission and normal monsoon, could aid paint industry growth.

  Research and development: To survive in the market, 
it is of utmost importance to develop niche product 
keeping customer preference in mind.

  Cost of raw material: Volatile prices of titanium oxide 
and petroleum can affect the production cost of the 
company. Comparatively, in the decorative segment, 
this cost can be passed. However, for the industrial 
segment, this is more of a burden.

  Depreciating rupee: Weakening rupee causes 
inflationary pressure on the economy by making 
import costlier. In the paint industry, most of the 
raw materials are imported. Hence, weaker rupee 
increases the cost of production.

  Entry of foreign players: Foreign players with modern 
technology will try to penetrate the domestic market. 
This will lead to price competition, enhancement of 
quality and launch of innovative product through 
effective R&D. Hence, high volumes will not 

  Seasonal demand: Demand for paint remains 
plateaued from June to August, while the sale gains 
momentum during festival season from August to 
December.
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The past two decades have witnessed Kamdhenu Limited starting from scratch to make an indelible presence in the home 
building materials segment. The Company has made a name for itself by consistently supplying the best quality building 
materials to real estate and infrastructure developers and individual home builders across the country. The product categories 
include TMT Bars, Structural Steel and Colour-Coated Sheets. In 2008, the Company forayed into decorative paints business. 
The success it achieved is evident in returns the paint segment made over the years. In 2013, Kamdhenu launched SS 10000 
TMT Bar, a premium product with double rib, double strength and double safety suitable for the highly seismic zone. Kamdhenu 
is known for its strict adherence to quality benchmarking process in-tandem with the international best practices. Along with the 
intent to deliver the best, the strong pan-India presence has helped the Company in commanding a superior brand value for its 
steel and paints products. Figures from reports could speak volumes about the achievement. But one tops all, Kamdhenu TMT 
Bar is now the largest selling brand in retail segment  in India.

Our Success Drivers

1 2 3

4 65

Mix of own manufacturing 
and franchisee-based model, 

and higher ROE, ROCE and 
margins

Quick delivery through Pan-
India franchise, dealer and 
distribution network 

Rapidly growing decorative 
paints sector through strong 
customer understanding and 
expertise developed over the 
years

Strong brand image derived 
out of excellent quality and 
valued customer service

Extensive product range in the 
decorative paint segment from 
premium to regular to niche 
product with high potential

Strong R&D to deliver 
innovative products across 
segments
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(` in Lakhs)

Revenue from Operations 1,23,239.62 1,18,732.52
Other Income 37.64 71.44
Total Revenue 1,23,277.26 1,18,803.96
Total Expenses 1,19,782.65 1,16,362.93

3,494.61 2,441.03
Tax Expenses 1,247.55 874.28

2,247.06 1,566.75
Paid up Capital  2640.00 2,340.00

During FY 2018-19, the Company achieved substantial 
growth, quarter on quarter. Both steel and paint segments 
performed exceptionally well owing to increasing market 
share, a growing number of products portfolio and 
distribution network.    

Revenue from operation increased from ̀ 1,18,732.52 Lakhs 
in 2017-18 to `1,23,239.62 Lakhs in 2018-19 rising at 4 % 
on account of effective stocking of raw material, improving 

ensuring great quality output.

due to an increase in sales. Brand name played a pivotal role 

ROE increased by 1.50% to 12.40% in 2018-19, this 
improved ROE of the Company implies that the Company 
is generating value for the shareholders by effectively 
using the funds and expanding their business. This would 

Our persistent efforts, over the last 24 years, made us a force 
to have faith in. Effective operation management and asset-
light franchisee model give us a competitive edge over our 
peers. But it is not the time to get complacent. We have taken 
a pledge to take this endeavour forward. In the future, we are 
planning to introduce new products, doing business with more 
franchisee and dealers and increasing margin.

This year, our steel business contributed 78 % to the 
revenue. The total revenue decreased from `98.607.94 
Lakhs to `96,256.99 Lakhs in FY2018-19. The yearly 
revenue under steel division at own manufacturing plant 

accounted for `32065.68 Lakhs and royalty-based income 
through Franchisee accounted for `8403.75 Lakhs, both 
increased by 57.1 % and 37.35% respectively as compared 
to the previous year. This growth was supported by growing 
needs for long steel from the infrastructure and construction 
sector.

division increased by  20% as compared to the previous 
year, reaching `5462.93 Lakhs during FY 2018-19 from  
`

steel division happened due to:

 Growing distribution network across India

 Quality products offered 

 Effective marketing and branding 

Fixed assets of steel division increased from ̀ 3741.75 Lakhs 
to `5042.95 Lakhs due to expansion at own manufacturing 
plant to back the research and development process.  

The paint division at Kamdhenu strategically built its 
brands over the years and made a good name for itself 
in the segment. It contributed 22% to the revenue of the 
business. The revenue of the business increased from  
`20,124.58 Lakhs in FY 2017-18 to `26,982.63 Lakhs in the 

growth occurred on account of rising per capita income, 
urbanization and media influence.

division increased by 16.96% as compared to the previous 
year and it reached to ̀ 820.04 Lakhs during FY 2018-19 from  
`701.14 Lakhs in 2017-18. Increase in the paint division 
happened due to:

 Marketing strategy

 Brand promotion

 Lucrative discount

 Rebate schemes

  Increasing margin from premium products offered

 Broadening of paint product category

 Market penetration in tier 1, tier 2 and tier 3 city

Fixed assets of paint division increased from  ̀ 3697.98 Lakhs 
to `3924.45 Lakhs due to upgradation and realignment 
process, which will replace machinery & equipment used in 
the production of powder-based paint to water-based.    
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( )

Risks include both short-term and long-term perspective. 
They can be segmented into industry and market risks, 
commercial risks, operational risks and compliance risks. 
Kamdhenu’s risk management principles apply universally 
across business verticals. Each operational unit is given 
the onus of owning and managing its risks mitigation 
measurements. Decisions are made or escalated according 

Implication: 
Downturn in the end-used industry could impact turnover 

Mitigation measures:
At Kamdhenu, we are strategically placed to leverage 
opportunities rising out of the real estate and infrastructural 
segment. Our strong brand repute, combined with the high 
quality of the product, makes us a preferred supplier for the 
above-mentioned industries.

Implication: 
Increasing competitive pressure may impact market share 

Mitigation measures:
The Company initiated effective business model, quality, 
services and increased its focus on research and 
development to counter competition. It allows the Company 
to build a strong mind-share amongst its stakeholders 
leading to managing consistent market share. 

Implication: 

obligations in time may impact the credit worthiness of the 
Company.

Mitigation measures:

Kamdhenu in consistently maintaining lower debt-equity 
ratio over the years. Internal accruals have always been the 
major contributor to the expansion funding, leading to lower 
borrowings and controlled credit risks. Besides, operating a 
franchise-based model eases out costs of owning assets.

Implication: 
Inability to produce and deliver the desired volumes owing 
to lack in capacity may adversely impact the brand image.

Mitigation measures:
The Company has effectively built an asset-light model by 
appointing franchises across the country. The Company 
reviews production capacities of the franchises, along with 
the desired skillsets to ensure optimum outcome from each 
unit. This leads to timely availability of end products for its 
customers across the length and breadth of the country. 

Implication: 
Fluctuating raw material prices or unavailability of key 
inputs may hamper the overall operations of the Company, 
leading to delays and cost inflation.

Mitigation measures: 
Ingot/Billet is the main raw material needed for TMT bars. 
They are sourced on spot-basis to hedge against the 
price fluctuation. The natural price rise of raw materials is 
passed on to the customers. For paint segment, petroleum/ 
alkyd resin/titanium dioxide prices are dependent on the 
international crude oil prices. To tackle this, the Company 
is shifting its focus towards water-based paint which is 
sustainable in nature.

Implication: 

may lead to delay in the delivery of end products to the 
customers, adversely impacting the brand image. 

Mitigation measures:
The Company has built strong supply chain management, 
right from the procurement of best quality raw material to 

spread across India, near their customer.

Implication: 
Any sub-standard product manufactured by the franchisee 
unit can affect the brand of the Company. Besides, poor 
quality or customer service may impact future business 
opportunities.

Mitigation measures:
As a countermeasure, the Company sets stringent quality 

adhered by franchisee units. All the employees are trained at 
the Company’s manufacturing plant before being deployed 
at the franchisee unit. 
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captivating retention, effective training and staff growth for 
the customers during the year. We focus on creating value 
for our employee by providing a work-free environment 
and fostering continuous improvement and development. 
This enabled several employees in realising their career 
aspirations during the year. The constructive strategies, 
abided by us, helped in attracting the best external 
talents and promote internal talents to higher roles and 
responsibilities. 

It is the employee that drive the Company ahead in an ever-
changing competitive scenario. That is why we believe in 
nurturing our employees through various initiative taken 
by leveraging technology and by organising workshops 
to enhance their potential and making them capable of 
realising their goals. The industrial relations of Kamdhenu 
Limited remained harmonious and peaceful during the year. 
As on 31st March, 2019, we had 710 employees. 

treatment other than the prescribed in the Accounting 
Standard has been followed. 

The core components of the Company principles are 
legal and ethical business. Kamdhenu Limited has a 
comprehensive internal control system, equipped with 

such as Accounts, Finance, Administration, Corporate 

of the various operations. 

The workflow has been kept transparent as much as 
possible. We believe in bringing in clarity to simplify 
operations. The entire mechanism is created and operated 
under the vision and guidance of the Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors. It enables the entire process to become 
independent, objective and achieve reasonable mechanism, 
ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 
risk management, governance processes, and control. The 

Internal Control Systems enable quality of management 
and smooth corporate functioning within the Company. 
Each transaction is duly authorized, recorded and reported. 

power with authority limits for approving revenue as well 
as capital expenditure. Processes for making and reviewing 
the annual and long-term business plans have been laid 
down. The internal audit is carried out in consultation with 
the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee based 
on the internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year. 
The Internal Audit process is designed precisely to review 
the internal control checks in the system by covering all 

Sales, Purchases, Inventory, Debtors, Creditors, Fixed 
Assets and legal compliance. The Company is not pursuing 
any conflicting transaction to avoid jeopardising of the 

commercial transactions with related parties that could 
raise doubts against the interest of the Company during the 

The statement in the Directors’ Report and Management 
Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, and expectations may 
be `forward-looking statements’ within the meaning, if 
applicable, of securities laws and regulations.

Although we believe that our expectations are based on 
reasonable assumptions, these forward-looking statements 
may be influenced by numerous risks and uncertainties. This 
could cause actual outcomes and results to be materially 
different from given or implied details. Important factors 
that could influence the Company’s operations include 
economic developments within the country, demand and 
supply conditions in the industry, input prices, changes in 
government regulations, tax laws and other factors such 
as litigation and industrial relations. The Company is not 
responsible in respect of the forward-looking statements 
herein, which may undergo changes in the future, based on 
subsequent development, information or events and holds 
no obligation to update these in the future.

( )
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To the Members of Kamdhenu Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Basis for Opinion

Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Key Audit Matters

 ON THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

matter to be communicated in our audit report:

Key Audit Matters Auditors Response

statements

Paint Factory of the Company 

management of the Company 

been prepared on 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
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 ON THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Statements

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 

report that:

 ON THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
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information and according to the 

of our information and according to the 

For B S D & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 000312S

(Surendra Khinvasra)
Partner

Membership No.: 070804

 ON THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
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(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information 

 

Name of the 
Statutes Nature of Dues Amount in Lakhs Financial year to which 

amount relates
Forum where dispute is 
pending

Duty
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 (CONTD.)

(

 

For B S D & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 000312S

(Surendra Khinvasra)
Partner

Membership No.: 070804
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FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
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(CONTD.)

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

OPINION 

For B S D & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 000312S

(Surendra Khinvasra)
Partner

Membership No.: 070804
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 

Note  
No.

As at  As at  

ASSETS 
1.

(a)
(b)  -   
(c)

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(d)

2.  Current Assets 
(a)
(b)

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(c)
Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

Equity 
(a)
(b)
Total Equity 
Liabilities 

1.
(a)

(i)
(ii)

(b)
(c)

2.  Current Liabilities 
(a)

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(b)
(c)
(d)
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities

        Total Equity and Liabilities 

For B S D & CO. (Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Sunil Kumar Agarwal)

(Surendra Khinvasra) (Harish Kumar Agarwal) (Jogeswar Mohanty) 
Partner 
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Note 
No.

  

I
II
III Total Income (I+II) 
IV Expenses: 

 -   

Total Expenses (IV) 
V
VI Exceptional items 
VII
VIII Tax Expenses: 

Total Tax Expenses (VIII)  874.28 
IX
X Other Comprehensive Income: 

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 
XII Earnings per equity share of face value of `10 each  

For B S D & CO. (Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Sunil Kumar Agarwal)

(Surendra Khinvasra) (Harish Kumar Agarwal) (Jogeswar Mohanty) 
Partner 



108 | 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
  

A.

Net Change in  

Cash Used from Operation 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 
B.

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activites (B) 
C.

Net Cash (used in) from Financing Activites (C) 
Net increase/(decrease) in  Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  137.41 
Opening Balance Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Closing Balance Cash and Cash Equivalents  
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(CONTD.)

Componantes of Cash and Cash Equivalents  (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at  

 -   

Total 

Reconciliation Statement of Cash & Bank Balances  (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at  

Total

(` in Lakhs)
 Opening 
Balance 

 Cash 
Flows 

 Non Cash 
Changes 

 Closing 
Balanes 

 -   
 -   

Total

(` in Lakhs)
 Opening 
Balance 

 Cash 
Flows 

 Non Cash 
Changes 

 Closing 
Balanes 

 -   
 -   

Total

For B S D & CO. (Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Sunil Kumar Agarwal)

(Surendra Khinvasra) (Harish Kumar Agarwal) (Jogeswar Mohanty) 
Partner 
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(` in Lakhs)

Balance as at  
1st April, 2017

Change in equity  
share capital during  

the year 2017-18

Balance as at  
31st March, 2018

Change in equity  
share capital during  

the year 2018-19

Balance as at  
31st March, 2019

2340 2340 300

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Reserve and Surplus

Other Comprehensive 
Income

Money 
Received 

against Share 

 Total  

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

Share Based 
Payment 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Fair Value 
of Invest

ments

Actuarial 
(Losses)/ Gain 

on defined 
benefit plans

 -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

year 
 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Warrant 
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend   -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31.03.2018  4.70  (28.41)

 -    -    -    -    -   

year 
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend   -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (23.14)

For B S D & CO. (Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Sunil Kumar Agarwal)

(Surendra Khinvasra) (Harish Kumar Agarwal) (Jogeswar Mohanty) 
Partner 



CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 1.1 Statement of Compliance

 1.2  Basis of Preparation

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that 
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operating in the manner intended by management, 
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 1.7 Inventories

 1.8 Cash and cash Equivalents

  Cash Flow Statement

  Bank Balances other than above

 1.10 Financial Instruments

  A. Financial Assets:
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  B.   Financial Liabilities
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 1.11 Fair value measurement

either:

or

 1.12 Borrowing cost

Assets
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   Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the case of:

and

 1.14 Share Based Payment 
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  Others

 1.17 Taxes on Income

  Current Tax

  Deferred Tax

 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 

 1.18 Earnings Per Share

 1.20 Leases

the arrangement at the inception date, whether 

 1.21 Foreign exchange transactions
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NOTE NO. 1

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Land  Buildings 
 Plant and 

Equipment 
 Furniture 

and Fixtures 
 Vehicles Equipment 

 Total 

 -   

 -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -   

 -    -   

Depreciation for the year  -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -   

Carrying Value as on 
31.03.2018 

 -   

 -   
 -    -    -   

 -    -   

Depreciation for the year  -    -   
 -    -    -   
 -    -   

Carrying Value as on  378.00  78.07 

NOTE NO. 2

(Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

 -    -   

Total  270.01 

NOTE NO. 2.1

 342.18  342.18 
 

 270.01 
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NOTE NO. 3

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

Total  8.27 

NOTE NO. 4

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total  207.80 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 

INVENTORIES (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 
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NOTE NO. 7

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

    Credit Impared 

Total 

Note:        

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

NOTE NO. 8

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

 -   

Total 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total  213.22 
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NOTE NO. 10

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

Total 

NOTE NO. 11

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 

NOTE NO. 12

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 

NOTE NO. 13

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Authorised Share Capital: 
` 

` 

Total

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at  As at 

 -   

At the end of the year
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(b)

Name of the Shareholder

As at  As at 

 No. of 
Shares 

 No. of 
Shares 

(c ) Term/ rights attached to equity shares

`

(d) Dividend        

` ` 

` 

(e) Employee Stock Option Scheme        

of ` ` 

`

` `
` ` 
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NOTE NO. 14

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

a. Capital Reserves

 -    -   
 -    -   

b. Securities Premium 

 -   
 -    -   

c.
 -   

 -   

d. Share Based Payment Reserve 
 -   

 -   

e. Other Comprehensive Income 

 -    -   
 (23.71)

f. Retained Earnings 

Total 

FORMING AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 (CONTD.)



CORPORATE OVERVIEW 01-30 STATUTORY REPORTS 31-97 FINANCIAL SECTION 98-147

2018-19 | 125

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

Total 

Note: * 

a) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Repayment Schedule 

 Rate of interest  p.a 

Total 

b) Nature of Security: Vehicle loans from Banks are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicle.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total

NOTE NO. 17

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 
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NOTE NO. 18

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

Deferred tax liability: 

Deferred tax assets: 

Net Deferred Tax Liability                

(a) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Net Balance 
(01.04.2018)

Recognised in 
profit or (Loss)

Recognised in 
OCI Net Deferred Tax  Deferred Tax 

Liability 
 Deferred Tax 

Assets 
 -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   
Deferred Tax (Assets) / 
Liabilities

 (377.42)

Particulars Net Balance 
(01.04.2017)

Recognised in 
P&L

Recognised in 
OCI

Net Deferred 
Tax

 Deferred Tax 
Liability 

 Deferred Tax 
Assets 

 -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   

 -   
 -    -   

 -    -   
Deferred Tax (Assets) / 
Liabilities
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A)  TAX EXPENSES

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars  31.03.2018 

Total  874.28 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars  31.03.2018 

 874.28 

NOTE NO. 20

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 
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NOTE NO. 21

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

Total 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

 -   

 -    -   

each accounting period  -    -   

 -    -   

      

the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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NOTE NO. 22

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  As at 

 -   

Total

NOTE NO. 23

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total 

NOTE NO. 24

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 

Total  43.18 
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
  

Sale of Products: 
1. Sale of Manufactured Goods: 

    (iii) Power 
2. Sale of Traded Goods: 

Income from Services: 

Total

OTHER INCOME (` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Interest Income: 

 -   

-
Total  71.44 

NOTE NO. 27

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED (` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Total (a) 

Total (b) 
Total (a+b) 
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NOTE NO. 28

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
  

Total 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Total (a) 

Total (b) 
 (772.31)

 

Net (Increase)/Decrease in stocks   (772.31)

NOTE NO. 30

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Total 

NOTE NO. 31

FINANCE COSTS (` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

 -   
 -   

Total 
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NOTE NO. 32

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
  

Depreciation 
Total  737.88  770.71 

NOTE NO. 33

OTHER EXPENSES (` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

`  
 -    -   

Rent 

 -   
Donation 

Total 

NOTE NO. 34

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Total 
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EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
  

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 

`) 

`) 

THE RESPECTIVE HEADS OF EXPENSES. (` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Total 

NOTE NO. 37

(CSR) ACTIVITIES AND SHORT FALL  IN SPENDING IN CSR: (` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

 -    -   

 -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

Total 

 -   
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NOTE NO. 38

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
  

a. Contingent Liabilities 

 -   

 b. Commitments 

Total (a+b) 

 I)  Assumptions    

Particulars 31.03.2018

Particulars 31.03.2018

Particulars 31.03.2018

Rates Rates
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Age 31.03.2018

II) Method of Valuation    

III) Summary of Membership Data

Particulars
As on As on 

31.03.2018

  

IV) Summary of Key Results (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As on As on 

31.03.2018
a) Balance Sheet

 -    -   
 -    -   
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 V) Actuarial measurements may differ in future from the current measurements due to factors such as:

  

  

VI) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 
 -    -   

 

 -    -   

 -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

VII) Movements in the fair value of the Plan Assets (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   
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VIII) Service Cost (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 -   

 -    -   

Total  47.73 

IX) Net Interest Cost (Income) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 -    -   

X) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 
 -    -   

 
 -    -   

 

 -    -   

 -    -   

 

XI) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

XII) The amount included in the Balance Sheet (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   
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XIII) (` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2018

Contribution paid to the Fund  -    -   

XIV) (` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2018

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

XV) (` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2018

Total

Total  812.13 
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XVI) Sensitivity Analysis      

a)
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2018

 

      
b)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2018

 
XVII) (` in Lakhs)

Key Management Personnel 31.03.2018

XVIII) Risks associated with Plan Provisions
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B) LEAVE ENCASHMENT

NOTE NO. 40

` ` 

NOTE NO. 41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

i) Commodity Risk    

ii) Credit Risk    

iii) Liquidity Risk    

 Exposure to liquidity risk    
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(` in Lakhs)

Carrying amount

 Borrowings: 

(` in Lakhs)

Carrying amount

Borrowings: 

iv) Capital Management

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

` 

v) Foreign Exchange Risk       
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NOTE NO. 42

(` in Lakhs)

Carrying 
Value

Fair Value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

 Financial Assets: 

(` in Lakhs)

Carrying 
Value

Fair Value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Liabilities: 

(` in Lakhs)

Carrying 
Value

Fair Value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets: 

(` in Lakhs)

Carrying 
Value

Fair Value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Liabilities: 
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NOTE NO. 42

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
 

 Paint 

 Power 

 Total 

b) 

 (` in Lakhs)

 Reconciliation of Revenue  

 Total 

c)

 (` in Lakhs)
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NOTE NO. 43

a)  Operating Segment

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars   

Segment Revenue  

Gross Revenue from Operations 
Segment Results 

Segment Assets 

Total Segment Assets 
Segment Liabilities 

Total Segment Liabilities 

b) Information about geographical areas 

 

i) (` in Lakhs)
India 

 -    -   

 

Particulars 31.03.2018

`
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NOTE NO. 44

 A. Related Parties and their Relationship     

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party

Key Management Personnel

 Other 

(` in Lakhs)

Remuneration/Perquisites   

Total 

Total 

Director Sitting Fee 

Total  11.80 

C) Others Transactions 

 -   

Total 
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` 
` 

  

`

`

  

price (in `
 

price
 -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
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Standards issued and amended but not effective    

Ind AS 12 Income tax (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over other income tax 
treatments): 

Ind AS 23 Borrowing Cost: 

Ind AS 28 Long term interest in associates and joint ventures: 

Ind AS 103 Business combinations and Ind AS 111 joint arrangements: 

 

 

 NOTE NO. 47 

 

 NOTE NO. 48 

For B S D & CO. (Satish Kumar Agarwal) (Sunil Kumar Agarwal)

(Surendra Khinvasra) (Harish Kumar Agarwal) (Jogeswar Mohanty) 
Partner 
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CIN: L27101DL1994PLC134282

 L-311, Khasra No. 724, Street No. 7 
Mahipalpur Extension, New Delhi - 110 037

 2nd Floor, Tower-A, Building No. 9  
DLF Cyber City Phase-3, Gurgaon - 122 002

Ph.: 0124-4604500 | Fax: 0124-4218524 
Email: kamdhenu@kamdhenulimited.com

Website: www.kamdhenulimited.com 


